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VISION

Supporting your journey to independence.

MISSION

To empower our customers through tailored injury prevention programmes and
support their return to meaningful life.

VALUES

Passion • Excellence • Teamwork • Integrity
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MVA FUND AT A GLANCE
The Motor Vehicle Accident (MVA) Fund was established in 1991, in terms of Act No. 30 of 1990, shortly
after independence, to compensate people injured in motor vehicle crashes or the dependents of people
killed in such crashes. It was then a “fault- based” system where compensation was paid as a result of
negligence or any other unlawful act on the part of the driver.
Today the Fund is mandated to design, promote and implement crash and injury prevention measures,
provide assistance and benefits to all people injured and the dependents of those killed in road crashes
in accordance with the MVA Fund Act No.10 of 2007. Hence, it operates on a “hybrid” system where all
people injured in motor vehicle crashes, regardless of who caused the crash, receive fair and reasonable
benefits (subject to some limitations and exclusions). Such payments are made in accordance with
administrative law principles.

Geographical Footprint
As a customer-centric organization, the MVA Fund effectively anticipates and responds to the ever
changing needs of its customers. One of the biggest challenges that hampered service delivery was
the long distances customers had to travel to submit claims, a situation which prompted the Fund
to develop an expansion strategy with the ultimate aim of increasing national presence and thereby
bringing services closer to the customer. This national expansion agenda is testimony of the Fund’s
commitment to support Government’s efforts towards its decentralization policy of bringing equitable
access to services to all Namibians, regardless of economic and social standing, in line with Vision 2030.
Currently service centres are located strategically:
1.

Windhoek

2.

Keetmanshoop

3.

Walvis Bay

4.

Otjiwarongo

5.

Rundu

6.

Katima Mulilo

7.

Ongwediva
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Source of Income
Similar to Botswana, Swaziland and Lesotho, Namibia inherited what is called the fuel levy system, a
compulsory third party compensatory system of South Africa where it has been in operation since 1942.
The fuel levy system was introduced as third party insurance payable by every driver/owner of a motor
vehicle when purchasing fuel, and that subsequent legislation was created for the benefit of persons
injured and/or killed in motor vehicle crashes.

Strategic Direction
The gazzeting and subsequent implementation of the MVA Fund Act No.10 of 2007 which obliges
the Fund to contribute toward national crash and injury prevention programmes, ensured inclusivity
and enabled the Fund to improve emergency medical care to all people injured in crashes. This is
complemented by the continuing focus on superior customer service which propelled the Fund into
expanding its responsibility toward its customers by placing much emphasis on the outcomes of the
injured persons - an objective which will be attained through building more intimate relationships with
customers with unique needs and involving them in their journey to independence.
Supported by its resolve to avail resources to ensure that injured persons are returned to work, school
and independence through a holistic outcome-based approach, improved investment in skills and
expertise internally and the fostering of strategic relationships with key partners, the Fund seeks to
improve its performance through the implementation of “Nzira Zompe - the New Route” - a five year
strategy, focusing on the following strategic focus areas:

Strategic Focus Area 1: Service Performance
The objectives are to:
-

Improve customer satisfaction levels

-

Develop productive relationships with key partners through stakeholder segmentation and
implementation of differentiated relationship development activities responding to stakeholder
influence and engagement

Strategic Focus Area 2: Human Resource Development
The objectives are to:
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-

Improve staff satisfaction levels

-

Continuously implement employee engagement programmes

-

Leverage existing constructive relationship with the Union
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Strategic Focus Area 3: Effective Internal Process
The objectives are to:
-

Ensure efficiency and effectiveness of internal policies and practices

-

Implement more sophisticated customer segmentation and development of services that
respond to customer needs

-

Establish new capabilities and activities in key areas such as information analytics, project
management and quality management

Strategic Focus Area 4: Financial Performance
The objectives are to:
-

Manage financial performance

-

Achieve solvency

MVA Fund Annual Report 2015

9

SECTION

02

Leadership and Corporate
Governance

10

MVA Fund Annual Report 2015

MVA FUND

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dr Zandile
Erkana
Chairperson

Mr Clive
Kavendjii
Deputy
Chairperson

The Late

Mr Phillip
Amunyela

Mr Pendapala
Nakathingo

Ms Antonia
Kapia

MVA Fund Annual Report 2015

11

Chairperson’s
STATEMENT

Dr. Zandile Erkana
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Chairperson’s Statement
This year the Fund launched its new 5 year strategy (2014-2019) under the theme “Nzira Zompe”
translating in English to “New Route”, which embarks on a new era following a change in new leadership
strategy in 2013. The Strategic Plan is premised on four key performance areas, namely:
a)

Service Performance

b)

Human Resource Development

c)

Effective Internal Process

d)

Financial Performance

The plan outlines the MVA Fund institutional aspirations and will serve to enable us to make astute
decisions in terms of allocating resources to programmes and activities that will ensure the Fund’s
delivery on is statutory mandate efficiently and sustainably. Central to this strategy is a refined approach
toward the service we provide to our customers, focusing specifically on rehabilitation with the aim of
returning injured persons to school, work or independence.
In line with the objectives of our national Vision 2030 and the Decade of Action Pillars, the Fund’s
contribution to capacity building in the emergency response area and upgrading standards of public
health care facilities have significantly enhanced public access to quality health care.
The new strategy is founded on the Business Model Canvas focused on understanding the needs of
customers segmented in two main groups, namely road users and people affected by road crashes.
Pursuant to this, is developing and delivering relevant services which respond to the needs of customers.
The canvas also allows the Fund to determine the most appropriate customer relationships and cost
drivers, and to define most appropriate means to generate revenue.
I am therefore pleased to present the MVA Fund Annual Report for 2015 which depicts the institution’s
performance in the above areas, as we conclude the first year of the new strategy.
To enhance service performance, the Fund conducted quarterly surveys on claimants and bi-annually
on seriously injured clients, while measuring the satisfaction level of its stakeholders annually. The
period under review saw claimant and seriously injured satisfaction levels drop to 81.6% from 84% in
the previous financial year. Stakeholder satisfaction was however recorded at 86%, an increase from
79% in 2014.
Human Resources Development is aimed at supporting staff satisfaction through the implementation
of appropriate engagement programmes and leveraging constructive relationship with the Union. In
recognition of such efforts, the Fund achieved 83% staff satisfaction in 2015.
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Effective Internal Process, another key performance area which the Fund embraced to ensure efficient
and effective internal policies and practice, saw improved business unit performance with the units
reaching 76% against the target of 70%. Audit compliance stood at 63% from the envisaged 95%, with
anticipation that these findings will be attended to with new vigor, resulting in improved resolution of
audit findings.
I am happy to announce that during the period under review, the Fund delivered solid financial
performance. Positive financial standing will ensure that we serve the expanding needs of our customers,
focusing specifically on rehabilitation.
The Board of Directors is proud of the accomplishments of the MVA Fund in the 2014/15 financial
year and wishes to acknowledge all employees for their hard work and dedication to the service we
render. We furthermore wishes to encourage them to continue to uphold the Fund’s values of passion,
excellence, teamwork and integrity.

…………………………..
DR. ZANDILE ERKANA
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Corporate Governance
As a State-Owned Enterprise, the Motor Vehicle Accident (MVA) Fund of Namibia operates under the
legal framework of the MVA Fund Act No.10 of 2007 and the State-owned Enterprises (SOE) Governance
Act 2 of 2006, as amended in 2008.
In fulfilling the requirements under the said Act, the Board of a State-owned Enterprise in the service
industry should strategically guide and lead the institution in an ethical manner, continuously focusing
on doing what is in the best interest of the public it serves.
In order to achieve this objective, the Board of the Fund is guided by the governance principles embedded
in the King Reports and the principle of apply or explain. The Fund’s values of caring, accountability,
transparency, integrity, teamwork and innovation are upheld and made part of business operations.

Board Structure
The Board consists mainly of five non-executive directors appointed by the Minister of Works and
Transport for a term of three years.

Board Committees
In terms of Section 17 of Motor Vehicle Accident Fund Act No.10 of 2007, the MVA Fund Board may
appoint board committees to assist the Board with the initial scrutinizing and review of recommendations,
before consideration for final approval by the Board.
The following committees of the Board operated during the period under review:
1.

Board Audit and Risk Committee

2.

Board Human Capital and Remuneration Committee

3.

Board Investment Committee

4.

Board Tender Committee

5.

Board Succession Planning Committee

6.

Medical Review Committee

These committee meetings, except for the Board Succession Planning Committee, are attended by
the Executive Leadership Team. The Board Audit and Risk Committee, Board Human Capital and
Remuneration Committee and the Board Investment Committee held four meetings respectively during
the financial year under review. The Board Succession Planning Committee and the Board Tender
Committee also reported on their respective activities to the Board of Directors at relevant times when
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meetings for these two committees were respectively called. All the above committees have restricted
functions and powers, and are permitted to garner independent advice from external consultants.

Board Audit and Risk Committee
This Committee is required to meet quarterly to monitor and evaluate processes, systems and financial
results of the Fund and ensures that the Board fulfills its audit responsibilities.
The Board Audit and Risk Committee is delegated to:
•

Monitor the Fund’s financial reporting and internal control systems;

•

Review financial information quarterly;

•

Review the Fund’s Actuarial Report and Audited Financial Statements;

•

Review the scope and activities of the Fund’s risk management programmes;

•

Engage the Fund’s internal auditor, independent of the Fund’s Executive Leadership to ensure the
elimination of unresolved issues;

•

Monitor audit reports and ensure execution of recommendations by internal auditors

The MVA Fund is exempted from all forms of tax and duties on all its activities in terms of the MVA Fund
Act No.10. of 2007.

Board Investment Committee
Conferring on a quarterly basis, the Board Investment Committee ensures that investments undertaken
by the Fund comply with the Investment Policy as approved by the Minister of Works and Transport. The
committee further conforms to the operational framework for investment as per the Investment Policy.

Board Human Capital and Remuneration Committee
Tasked to review policy matters concerning employment conditions and Human Resource policies and
procedures as well as the setting of employment conditions of management and executive management,
the Board Human Capital and Remuneration Committee meets quarterly.

Board Succession Planning Committee
Attended by two Board members, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Human Capital, this
committee is a Sub-Committee and reports to the Human Capital and Remuneration Committee. This
Sub-Committee is concerned with the deliberate and systematic effort to ensure leadership in key
positions, guiding the Fund to invest for retention and/or development of leaders to ensure business
continuity.
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Board Tender Committee
Authorized to assess and approve all tenders amounting to N$1 million or exceeding such amount, but
below N$2 million. The Board Tender Committee also considers and makes recommendation to the
Board for its approval of tenders in the amount of or exceeding N$2 million. The committee is further
accountable for ensuring that the Fund’s tender processes are transparent and complied with.

Medical Review Committee
The Act makes provision for the appointment of a Medical Review Committee consisting of three
persons with knowledge, skills, understanding and experience in medical treatment, injury management,
rehabilitation and long-term care of injured persons. The Committee is authorized to advise the board,
on an ad hoc basis as the need arises, where customers have expressed their dissatisfaction with
rehabilitation plans being awarded or with the cessation of Loss of Income awards by the Fund if the
Fund’s internal review committee retains its initial stance which led to the dissatisfaction.

Board Responsibilities
The Strategic Plan and Annual Business and Financial Plans approved by the Minister of Works and
Transport, enable the MVA Fund Board to perform its functions and powers.
The Board directs the following:
•

Roles and governance structure;

•

Long-term and immediate strategic goals and priorities;

•

Functions in relation to the management of the Fund;

•

Financial statements;

•

Investment policies.

The Board is further accountable for ensuring that the Fund executes its purpose and
functions under the Act, namely to:
•

Design, develop, promote and implement motor vehicle accident and injury prevention measures;

•

Fairly and reasonably provide assistance and benefits to persons injured in motor vehicle accidents;

•

Fairly and reasonably provide assistance and benefits to a person who suffers loss as a dependent
of a person killed in a motor vehicle accident;

•
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Manage the assets, liabilities and risks of the Fund.
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The Board has an official schedule of matters concerning governance reserved for its decision,
which includes:
•

Establishing the strategic direction of the Fund;

•

Ensuring appropriate monitoring and audit standards are in place;

•

Financial reporting and approval of annual budgets;

•

Approving significant acquisitions, disposals and significant capital expenditure;

•

Approving significant changes in accounting policies;

•

Selecting and appointing the Chief Executive Officer and annually reviewing the Chief Executive
Officer’s performance;

•

Ensuring the Fund is managed within a framework of prudent and effective controls and approves
changes to the organizational structure;

•

Ensuring that management is compliant with relevant statutes, regulations and Ministerial directives.

Risk and Assurance Procedures
The MVA Fund follows Risk and Assurance procedures which include:
•

Compliance with legislation applicable to the MVA Fund;

•

Auditing of appropriate internal financial controls;

•

Claims effectiveness audits;

•

Benchmarking good governance principles;

•

Institutional risk profiling;

•

Employee engagement survey.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting
The effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting is based on the following:
•

Internal audit evaluations of efficiency or otherwise of internal controls and line management
performing self-assessment on the suitability and effectiveness of their internal controls;

•

Independent auditors’ verification and report on management appreciation of audit findings.

These activities provide evidence of effective controls for relevant assertions and for significant
accounts and disclosure.

MVA Fund Annual Report 2015

19

Conflict of Interest
The Fund has a Declaration of Conflict Policy to ensure that Directors and employees timeously declare
possible conflict of interest to ensure that an informed decision can be taken on how to manage or avoid
conflict of interest.
None of the Board members had an interest in contracts or transaction entered into by the MVA Fund
during the reporting period.

Indemnity and Insurance
Directors and staff have a statutory indemnity under section 32(11) of the Motor Vehicle Accident Fund
Act No.10 of 2007, unless the commission or omission constitutes gross negligence. There is also a
comprehensive insurance programme in place. Insurance needs are managed progressively to ensure
appropriate levels of the Fund’s risk profile and exposure.

Auditor Independence
The Auditor-General is by statute, the external auditor of the Fund. In the year under review, BDO
was contracted by the Auditor-General to undertake the audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s
auditing standards.
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement
The MVA Fund recorded great financial strides during the first year of the new strategic plan as
evidenced by a 15% increase in revenue and investment income which increased by 72%. Indirect
claims expenses which comprise of accident and injury prevention costs, medical management costs
and public education expenses, reduced by 55%. Additionally, the Fund achieved a funding level of
84.2% against the set target of 74%. The increase in investments which went up from N$347 million in
2014 to N$483 million in the 2015 financial year, resulted in total assets increasing from N$508 million
in 2014 to N$659 million in 2015, indicating an increase of 30%, in total assets.
Under Effective Internal Process which is measured by business unit performance, we attained 76%
against the target of 70%, whilst audit compliance is at 63% against 95% target, a target that now
receives focussed attention.
Furthermore, the year 2014/15 yielded enhanced efforts in stakeholder and employee management.
These efforts produced incredible results, with an increase in staff satisfaction levels to 81.6% against
the target of 80%, as well as the attainment of the 2nd Overall Best Employer Award in the Small to
Medium Category in the Deloitte Best Company To Work (BCTWF) Survey.
In our pursuit to support our claimants’ journey to independence, we are making great strides in our
rehabilitation management programme where 71.3% of 268 claimants who required post discharge
rehabilitation, achieved their SMART goals within six months after injury. The establishment of the Spinal
Cord Injury Rehabilitation Unit proved to be a great asset to Namibia as 59 persons were rehabilitated,
each over an average period of 12 to 16 weeks.
The Fund settled 3 funeral claims on average per day (59 per month) and 29 all other claims, i.e. injury
grant, loss of support and loss of income (584 combined), on average per month.
Progressively transforming into a more customer-centric institution, the MVA Fund will continue to
maintain and improve satisfaction levels in future. Productive relationship building with key partners
through stakeholder segmentation and implementation of differentiated relationship development
activities designed to respond to stakeholder influence and engagement, will enhance this cause.
Additionally, capacity building in the medical emergency environment remains important to the Fund in
complementing Government’s efforts to improve access to health care.
The above mentioned achievements were possible through the guidance and support of the Board.
I therefore extend my appreciation to the Board of Directors and Staff of the MVA Fund as well as all
stakeholders for their unwavering support as the Fund continues to evolve into a world-class institution.

……………………………………
ROSALIA MARTINS-HAUSIKU
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Chief
Financial Officer’s Report
FINANCIAL REVIEW

James Nyandoro
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Highlights

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

15% increase in revenue
72% increase in investment income
30% increase in total assets
39% increase in investments
51% reduction in accumulated deficit
Funding level up from 63.8% in the previous financial year, to 84.2%
Solvency ratio increased to 86% from 70% from last year

Lowlights

•
•

11% increase in operating expenses
43% increase in claims expenses

Revenue
Total revenue for 2014/15 financial year was N$541 million up from N$470 million in the previous year,
an increase of 15%. The increase is attributed to 7% increase in volumes of fuel sold. Total fuel levy per
litre of petrol and diesel at 31 March 2015 remained at 47.7 cents.
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Other

Total Revenue

Fig 1: Revenue trend: 2011 - 2015
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Claims Costs
Direct claim costs increased by 29% from 2013/14 to 2014/15 financial year which increase is attributable
to increases in injury grant (22%), loss of support undertakings (36%) and hospital and medical expenses
(35%). The increase in medical expenses was mainly due to an increase in the number of people injured
in road crashes and severity of injuries which resulted in the Fund making more use of private hospitals
in most cases where treatment could not be provided at public facilities. The increase in number of
injured persons and severity of those injuries resulted in an increase of 22% in injury grant. The increase
in loss of support is a result of the increase in cost due to dependants of those killed in motor vehicle
crashes.
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0
2010/11

2011/12
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2012/13

2013/14

Funeral Expenses

Hospital and Medical Expenses

2014/15
Loss of Income

Legal Fees

Fig 2: Claims Cost: 2011 - 2015

Indirect Claim Expenses
Indirect claim expenses consist of accident and injury prevention costs, medical management costs
and public education expenses. For the year under review, total indirect expenses amounted to N$2.9
million with N$1.6 million spent on accident and injury prevention, N$669,000 on medical management
and N$600,000 on public education.

Operational Expenses
Operational expenses increased by 11% from 2013/14 to 2014/15 financial year. Notable increases
were experienced in the following areas:
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•

Bad debts of N$1.4 million which relate to an impairment of investment held through unit trusts with
Stanlib held with African Bank which was placed under curatorship.

•

Corporate Social Investment (CSI) activities in line with the policy and Fund business which limits
these activities to 2% of fuel levy revenue.

•

Employee and director costs due to annual increases which are due to inflation increases plus
performance related increases.

•
•

Property management expenses as a result of the MVA Fund properties requiring more repair work.
Travelling expenses in line with additional MVA Fund activities as well as benchmark visits to Sister
Funds in the region and other organisations abroad.
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Fig 3: Operational Expenses: 2011 - 2015

Financial Performance
The Fund achieved an operating surplus of N$111 million for the financial year ended 31 March 2015.
This surplus was achieved as a result of 15% increase in revenue which surpassed the increase in
costs. This was brought about by a 7% increase in fuel levy volumes sold as well as a 39% increase in
investment income. Improved investment returns are as a result of increases in investments as well as
improved performance of investments in the market.
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Statement of Financial Position
Assets
Total assets increased from N$508 million in 2013/14 to N$659 million in 2014/15 financial year, an
increase of 30%. This is as a result of growth in investments which went up from N$347 million in 2014/15
to N$483 million in the 2014/15 financial year, indicating an increase of 39%. The Fund continues to
achieve a surplus, which funds are invested and contributed to the increase in these investments.

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities increased by 7% from 2013/14 to 2014/15 financial year. The increase in liabilities
are mainly due to increased claims provisions and reserves.
A notable increase relate to incurred but not reported (IBNR) which went up by 23.8% and in claims
undertakings which increased by 12.7%. Other increases of 12.4% each relate to claims handling
expenses and contingency reserves. Other long term liabilities comprise of long term borrowings of
N$60.7 million being the balance outstanding from an advance received from Ministry of Mines and
Energy. Such interest-free loans are recognised as a form of Government assistance and are recognised
as the difference between the initial carrying amount of the loan and the actual proceeds received from
Government.
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Current liabilities decreased by 17% from N$30.8 million in the 2013/14 financial year to N$25.6 million
at 31 March 2015.

Accumulated Deficit
Accumulated deficit improved from N$218 million to N$106.5 million. The Fund is still pursuing to achieve
an accumulated surplus by 31 March 2017. With current efforts of managing costs at all levels, the Fund
may achieve that target before the envisaged date.
Funding level measures the adequacy of the Fund’s net assets to pay for claims’ liabilities. The ideal
position is for the Fund to have a funding level of 100%. At 31 March 2015, the funding level was 84.2%
compared to 65.1% at 31 March 2013.
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Financial Review

2013

%

%

Common size percentages

2015

2014

N$000

N$000

Revenue
Fuel levy revenue

541,301
505,502

469,848
448,413

400,989
390,438

15%
13%

17%
15%

Investment Income

33,087

19,290

6,445

72%

199%

6.1%

4.1%

1.6%

2,712

2,145

4,106

26%

-48%

0.5%

0.5%

1.0%

231,519

184,965

201,501

25%

-8%

42.8%

46.1%

50.3%

34,564
4,480

28,264
4,613

30,762
3,905

22%
-3%

-8%
18%

6.4%
0.8%

6.0%
1.0%

7.7%
1.0%

N$000 change change

2015

2014

2013

Abridged Income Statement

Other
Less: Direct Claims Expenses
General damages/injury grant
Funeral expenses

663

3,445

37,550
152,240

27,585
117,955

1,033
38,163

-81%
36%

234%
-28%

0.1%
6.9%

0.7%
5.9%

0.3%
9.5%

126,275

29%

-7%

28.1%

25.1%

31.5%

1,879
143

2,990
113

1,343
21

-37%
27%

123%
438%

0.3%
0.0%

0.6%
0.0%

0.3%
0.0%

2,881
1,612

6,360
4,177

5,482
676

-55%
-61%

16%
518%

0.5%
0.3%

1.6%
0.9%

1.4%
0.2%

669
600

1,620
563

381
4,425

-59%
7%

325%
-87%

0.1%
0.1%

0.3%
0.1%

0.1%
1.1%

121,237
71,990
917
48,330

111,275
70,882
754
39,639

102,327

9%

9%

22.4%

27.8%

25.5%

61,685
573
40,068

2%
22%
22%

15%
32%
-1%

13.3%
0.2%
8.9%

15.1%
0.2%
8.4%

15.4%
0.1%
10.0%

Movement in claims provision

74,429

11,772

(78,280)

532%

-115%

13.8%

2.5%

-19.5%

Surplus/(deficit) for the year

111,235

155,476

169,959

-28%

-9%

20.5%

38.8%

42.4%

82,465

75,283

73,432

6%

1%

13%

15%

22%

Current Assets

577,034

270,122

132,755

34%

60%

87%

85%

78%

Total Assets

659,499

345,406

206,187

30%

47%

100%

100%

100%

(106,539) (361,052)

(531,010)

-48%

-43%

-16%

-40%

-105%

Loss of income undertakings
Loss of support undertakings
Hospital and Medical Expenses
Legal Settlements
Other
Less: Indirect Claims Expenses
Accident & Injury prevention
Medical Management
Public education
Less: Operational Expenses
Employment costs
Severance pay IAS19 provision
Other

Abridged Balance Sheet
Non-Current Assets

Accumulated Funds and Reserves
Non-Current Liabilities

740,438

682,018

715,276

8%

0%

112%

134%

197%

Total Current Libilities

25,600

24,440

21,921

-17%

26%

4%

6%

7%

659,499

345,406

206,187

30%

47%

100%

100%

100%

Total accumulated funds and long
term liabilities
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100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
93.4%
95.4%
97.4%
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Financial Review
Abridged Income Statement
Revenue
Fuel levy revenue
Investment Income
Other

2015
N$000

2014
N$000

2013
N$000

2012
N$000

2011
N$000

2010
N$000

2009
N$000

2008
N$000

2007
N$000

2006
N$000

2005
N$000

2004
N$000

541,301
505,502
33,087
2,712

469,848
448,413
19,290
2,145

400,989
390,438
6,445
4,106

350,188
344,195
1,418
4,575

290,765
285,594
1,794
3,377

244,659
234,376
1,049
9,234

164,954
161,253
2,991
710

152,787
148,127
4,523
136

112,618
108,231
4,087
300

85,294
80,139
4,083
1,073

55,664
51,717
2,681
1,267

69,564
48,793
812
19,958

Less: Direct claims expenses
General damages/injury grant
Funeral expenses
Loss of income undertakings
Loss of support undertakings
Hospital and Medical Expenses
Legal Fees
Other

231,519
34,564
4,480
663
37,550
152,240
1,879
143

184,965
28,264
4,613
3,445
27,585
117,955
2,990
113

201,501
30,762
3,905
1,033
38,163
126,275
1,343
21

182,492
25,572
3,534
541
5,465
146,546
554
280

133,330
37,974
3,833
1,093
8,357
72,867
8,723
482

147,280
37,357
3,715
905
9,699
61,127
31,841
2,636

98,649
25,335
3,515
1,200
12,158
48,107
5,566
2,768

49,711
22,229
1,865
1,521
11,186
10,808
1,885
217

131,444
12,065
1,563
3,751
5,889
1,686
106,489

13,563
11,334
1,453

3,611
1,806
1,805

37,728
32,073
5,645

776

0

9

2,881
1,612
669
600

6,360
4,177
1,620
563

5,482
676
381
4,425

6,927
1,190
1,794
3,943

15,077
9,154
1,834
4,089

7,067
3,608
1,644
1,815

5,317
2,540
1,752
1,025

7,679
2,461
1,658
3,560

15,499
12,696
384
2,418

9,753
9,753
-

5,234
5,234
-

1,576
1,576
-

121,237
71,990
917
48,330

111,275
70,882
754
39,639

102,327
61,685
573
40,068

89,156
56,194
414
32,548

75,355
40,613
146
34,596

67,898
30,378
285
37,235

58,543
29,148
600
28,795

45,113
26,120

15,184
11,284

10,574
9,868

4,897
4,897

2,894
2,764

18,993

3,901

706

-

130

Movement in claims provision

74,429

11,772

(78,280)

59,672

104,183

69,281

319,513

(18,457)

-

-

-

-

Surplus/(deficit) for the year

111,235

155,476

169,959

11,941

(37,181)

(46,867) (317,068)

68,741

(49,510)

51,404

41,921

27,366

82,465
6,124
76,341

77,565
6,124
71,441

76,661
6,124
70,537

73,432

58,972

53,712

56,201

23,415

2,322

73,432

58,972

53,712

56,201

23,415

2,322

10,270
8,854
1,416

16,696
15,935
761

1,870
1,330
540

577,034
89,265

430,381
78,054

268,744
64,783

132,755
56,452

81,788
49,984

83,056
45,093

36,436
23,649

74,743
30,073

78,559
22,035

55,070
16,628

35,410
9,524

29,070
9,188

483,231
4,135

347,384
4,943

165,842
38,118

1,448
51,684
23,171

12,205
15,806
3,793

32,278

38,442

-

-

17,818
20,146

977
11,810

19,314
25,357

24,246

-

25,886

19,882

659,499

507,946

345,405

206,187

140,760

136,768

92,637

98,159

80,881

65,340

52,106

30,940

Less: Indirect claims expenses
Accident & Injury prevention
Medical Management
Public education
Less: Operational expenses
Employment costs
Severance pay IAS19 provision
Other

Abridged Balance Sheet
Non current assets
Investments
Property Plant & Equipment
Current Assets
Accounts Receivable
Work in Progress
Short-term investments
Cash at bank and in hand
Total Assets
Accumulated Funds and Reserves
Total Long Term Liabilities
Long Term Borrowings
Claim Provisions and Reserves
HP Leases
Severance benefit obligation
Deferred Income

(106,539)

(205,576) (361,052)

(531,011) (542,953) (505,207) (458,341) (141,274) (211,940) (163,068) (207,041) (519,216)

740,438
60,751
675,828
3,859
-

682,682
41,702
589,201
2,942
48,837

682,018
45,757
583,573
151
2,188
50,348

715,276
46,804
613,785
1,015
1,615
52,057

670,299
48,111
568,606
1,201
52,381

615,588
77,110
523,429
504
885
13,660

534,944
26,328
506,239
1,777
600
-

227,598
227,058
540
-

284,200
284,200
-

223,300
223,300
-

255,712
255,712
-

549,708
549,708
-

25,600
25,451
149
-

30,840
26,703
4,137
-

24,440
19,735
4,705
-

21,922
17,726
4,196
-

13,414
10,501
2,913
-

26,386
8,311
17,406
669

16,034
9,594
2,783
3,657

11,835
10,373
1,385
77

8,621
4,867
3,755

5,108
3,181
1,927

3,435
3,435
-

448
448
-

Total accumulated funds and liabilities 659,499

507,946

345,406

206,187

140,760

136,768

92,637

98,159

80,881

65,340

52,106

30,940

110,521
398,758
30,650
32,182
85,836
17,881
675,828

89,259
353,771
27,274
28,638
83,615
18,842
601,399

83,420
354,877
26,466
27,789
84,140
6,881
583,573

59,182
400,548
19,847
35,968
90,556
7,684
613,785

72,319
353,289
7,902
32,738
90,387
11,971
568,606

149,524
179,100
8,972
39,464
100,259
46,106
523,425

127,688
204,448
7,661
30,000
136,442
506,239

19,837
20,645
154,147
2,429
30,000
227,058

157,000
20,000
81,700
15,500
10,000
284,200

125,200
26,600
49,400
12,100
10,000
223,300

193,762
23,000
15,703
23,247
255,712

404,904
31,431
12,147
101,226
549,708

84.2%

65.1%

38.1%

13.5%

4.5%

3.5%

9.5%

37.8%

25.4%

27.0%

19.0%

5.5%

Total Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Borrowings falling due within one year
Bank Overdraft

Claims provisions and reserves
Incurred but not reported
Provision for outstanding claims
Undertakings reserves
Provision for claims related expenses
Contingency reserve
Belgium Doctors Claim
Claims in litigation

Funding level
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Objectives
Manage stakeholder relationships and provide excellent customer service. The MVA Fund will pursue
productive relationships with key partners through stakeholder segmentation and the implementation of
differentiated relationship development activities that respond to stakeholder influence and engagement .
The indicators for this objective are:

•
•

Stakeholder satisfaction
Customer satisfaction

Stakeholder Satisfaction
In pursuit of enhanced collaboration between and amongst stakeholders, the MVA Fund conducts annual
surveys with its key stakeholders to gauge their perception about the Fund and also to determine the
level of their satisfaction as regards institutional operations.
Key stakeholders include Government, State-Owned Enterprises, business fraternity, road safety
partners and medical fraternity.
The outcome of the annual stakeholder survey in the financial year under review shows that our
stakeholder satisfaction level is at 86%, which is an improvement from 79% stakeholder satisfaction
level as recorded in the financial year 2013/14.

2011

2013

2014

2015

56%

82%

79%

86%

Table 1: Stakeholder satisfaction level: 2011 - 2015

The Fund is proud to report a consistent high satisfaction level among the medical service providers
since the inception of the survey in 2011.
Despite the excellent satisfaction level, the Fund noted non-compliance to prescribed tariffs and rules
among some service providers which delays invoice processing and payment, and may affect overall
satisfaction levels.

Customer Satisfaction
Central to the MVA Fund’s 2014-2019 Strategic Plan is a refined approach towards service delivery.
To improve customer satisfaction levels, the Fund conducts quarterly customer satisfaction surveys
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for claimants and bi-annual satisfaction surveys for seriously injured clients. These surveys involve
customers’ perspective about the Fund’s service delivery, product awareness and service offerings. It
further focusses on areas where service provision can be improved thereby improving satisfaction levels
and/or maintained over the next five years and beyond.
During the period under review, a survey conducted by the Central Consultancy Bureau at the University
of Namibia (UCCB) shows a decrease in customer satisfaction rating from 88, 2% in 2013 to 84% in
2014 and to 81.3% in 2015 versus the target of 85%.
The Fund devised a tracker to implement customer feedback recommendations, with the view to increase
satisfaction levels. Palliative education along with internal customer care training for Case Managers
and Case Coordinators were recommended to assist the Fund in achieving desired satisfaction levels
among seriously injured clients. The table below depicts customer satisfaction level since 2009.
2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

85%

87%

89%

90%

88.2%

84%

81.3%

Table 2: Customer Satisfaction: 2009 - 2015

It is important to note that the Fund combined claimant satisfaction and seriously injured surveys to
calculate the overall satisfaction levels, resulting in 86% satisfaction recorded among claimants, and
61% for the seriously injured customers.

Claims Management
The MVA Fund Act No.10 of 2007 Section 34 states that all claims should be submitted to the Fund
within one year of a road crash occurring, except for minors, persons under curatorship and mentally
incapacitated individuals.
Table 3 shows the trend of crashes, injuries and fatalities per month for the year 2013 in comparison
to 2014. Crashes increased by 17%, while injuries also increased slightly by 8% and fatalities by 7%.
Furthermore, statistics for the year 2014 indicate that on average a total of 337 crashes, 526 injuries and
56 fatalities were recorded monthly.
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2013

2014

Months

Crashes

Injuries

Fatalities

Months

Crashes

Injuries

Fatalities

Jan

240

435

42

Jan

268

463

63

Feb

251

496

35

Feb

318

477

40

Mar

309

509

45

Mar

366

492

66

Apr

249

388

54

Apr

317

528

46

May

291

438

45

May

368

507

63

Jun

278

488

49

Jun

339

468

53

Jul

343

598

59

Jul

336

501

64

Aug

310

409

69

Aug

383

594

82

Sep

304

450

63

Sep

291

420

46

Oct

326

590

48

Oct

331

545

41

Nov

284

453

50

Nov

354

501

49

Dec

269

593

70

Dec

367

820

61

Total

3454

5845

629

Total

4038

6314

674

2015
Months

Crashes

Injuries

Fatalities

Jan

330

520

66

Feb

328

492

41

Mar

408

652

68

Total

1066

1654

175

Table 3: Crashes, injuries and fatalities per month: 2013 - 2015

Claims Received
A total number of 3483 claims including funeral, injury grant, loss of support and loss of income were
received by the Fund during the 2014/15 financial year.
Statistics indicate a downward trend in the number of benefit claims, regardless of the fact that crashes,
injuries and fatalities increased. A constant decrease has been recorded on the number of claims
received since 2010 up to 2013 that is 17%, 13% and 3% respectively. However, 2014/15 recorded an
increase by 6.6%.
As illustrated in Figure 5, the number of claims received decreased by 17.4% during the 2011/12 financial
year as compared to the preceding financial year, i.e. 2010/11. Similarly, benefit claims further reduced
by 12.9% during the 2012/13 financial year as compared to 2011/12. However, a slight decrease of 2.6%
is observed in 2013/14, compared to the number of claims registered during the 2012/13 financial year.
Furthermore, the number of claims increased by 6.6% during the 2014/15 financial year as compared to
the previous year. On average, 3702 benefit claims are lodged with the Fund, annually.
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Fig 5: Claims trend: 2010/11 - 2014/15 Financial Years

Figure 6 below shows the distribution of registered claims for the year 2014/15 in comparison to claims
registered during 2013/14, per type. The trend remains the same in 2013 and 2014 whereby in both
years, most claims received were for Injury Grant benefit (74%) followed by claims in respect of Funeral
Grant (20%) in 2013 and 19% in 2014. The same occurrence is also observed in funeral claims where
most of the claims were registered during January and August in the two years.

3000
2500
2000
1500
1000
500
0
Injury
Grant

Loss
of
Support
2013/14

Loss
of
Income

Funeral
Grant

2014/15

Fig 6: Type of claims 2013 - 2015
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Other

Hospital Management and Rehabilitation
The MVA Fund refined its approach toward customer service, focusing specifically on rehabilitation with
the aim of returning the injured persons to school, work and community. In order to realize this goal, the
Fund increased human resources in Case Management to ensure maximum output.
Road crash survivors are triaged (sorted in order of severity of injuries) at state hospitals and those with
minor injuries treated and discharged while customers with moderate injuries and serious injuries are
admitted where required. For admitted customers, Case Managers conduct hospital visits to consult on
treatment and rehabilitation plans in collaboration with customers and their respective treating health
professionals. Table 4 below indicates admissions with respect to length of stay for April 2014 to March
2015.
A total of 1327 of the persons injured were admitted in hospital for injury management. Discharged
claimants stayed in hospital for an average of 20.06 days, that is 24.83 for seriously injured and 15.28
for non-seriously injured.

Admissions:

1327

Reported Cases Admitted

1100

(Unreported Cases Admitted)

227

Reported Cases Discharged

813

Total average length of stay (Loss of Support)

15.04

SEVERE INJURIES:
Admission:

92

Traumatic Brain Injury (Severe)

49

Spinal Cord Injury

43

Discharges:

49

Traumatic Brain Injury (Severe)

32

Spinal Cord Injury

17

Total Average Loss Of Support

24.83

Private Facilities Average Loss Of Support

20.55

NON SEVERE INJURIES:
Admissions

1008

Discharges

801

Total Average Loss Of Support

15.28

Private Facilities Average Loss Of Support

13.79

Table 4: Hospital length of stay 2014/15 Financial Year
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From 01 April 2014, the Fund adopted a rehabilitation management programme which is based on the
principles of early intervention, community based rehabilitation, customer centred, assessment, holistic
and outcome-based goals. The programme additionally aims at supporting clients to achieve individual
SMART goals within six months from date of injury.

A total of 268 patients required post discharge rehabilitation in order to return to pre-injury tasks at work,
school or community. Furthermore, 255 rehabilitation plans were drafted and reviewed. From the 268

patients, a total of 191 (71.3%) patients achieved their Rehabilitation SMART goals within six months

after injury. Thirteen of the required rehabilitation plans were not finalized, while seven patients who
required rehabilitation post discharge passed away before achieving their rehabilitation goals. The main
reason for incomplete rehabilitation plans was that the customers were unreachable on the contact
details provided. However, this is currently being mitigated by obtaining two to three contact details of
the patients and their next of kin.

Table 5 below shows the distribution of outcomes for rehabilitation goal attainment. The leading outcome
is returning to work (43.5%), followed by returning to community (40.3%) and lastly returning to school
(16.2%).

Month

Total

Returned To Returned To

Returned To

Total Goal

% Goal

Cases

Work

Community

Attainment

Attainment For The

School

Month

Apr

53

19

7

15

41

77%

May

59

21

7

12

40

68%

Jun

49

14

3

18

35

71%

Jul

39

13

2

10

25

64%

Aug

44

15

6

11

32

73%

Sep

24

1

6

11

18

75%

Oct

42

13

2

15

30

71%

Nov

35

9

1

14

24

69%

Dec

56

18

3

20

41

73%

Jan

26

8

2

11

21

81%

Feb

25

4

5

8

17

68%

Mar

33

10

5

11

26

79%

Total

485

145

49

156

350

Average 72%

Table 5: Distribution of rehabilitation outcomes at goal attainment - 2014/15

Home Modifications
The home modification project was initiated during the financial year under review in view of adapting

customers’ living environment to make daily living activities easier for the individual with limitation, to
reduce home related incidents and support independent living, thus improving customer satisfaction

among seriously injured clients. The total number of seriously injured who require house modification
were 46 at the beginning of financial year under review of which 12 houses were modified.
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A number of obstacles in securing modification for those who need them were encountered. These
include:

•
•

Some customers do not own property neither do they own land where structures can be erected.

Under-developed service delivery system (serviced land, sanitation, sewerage system, water and
electricity especially with rural and informal settlers).

Medical Cost Management
Medical expenses have been a high cost driver for the Fund due to a number of factors including
increasing number of road crashes and severity of injuries sustained. The enactment of the MVA Fund
Act No.10 of 2007, which came into effect in 2008, extended the Fund’s cover to include emergency
benefits for all persons injured in a road crash, regardless of the cause of crash. Therefore, medical cost
remain disproportionally high in relation to the claims lodged with the Fund, as all persons injured are
covered for emergency medical care.
During the period under review, and as indicated in Fig 8 below, the Fund spent N$140,517,028.77
in respect of medical expenses with an average of N$11,709,752.40 million per month. This expense
accounts for more than 25% of total revenue.
The amount paid has significantly increased from the financial years 2011 to 2015.

160,000,000.00
140,000,000.00
120,000,000.00
100,000,000.00
80,000,000.00
60,000,000.00
40,000,000.00
20,000,000.00
0.00
2012/2013

2011/2012

Claimed Amount

2013/2014

Accepted Amount

2014/2015

Paid Amount

Fig 7: Annual Medical Cost 2011- 2015
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Table 6 below indicates medical payments per month for the 2014/15 financial year.
Months

Number of Invoices

Amount of Money Paid

Apr

2520

12,822,931.60

May

2280

9,311,524.82

Jun

1590

10,527,618.33

Jul

2249

14,183,224.04

Aug

2366

14,124,119.00

Sept

570

2,499,963.64

Oct

3329

16,986,666.33

Nov

2336

13,152,791.90

Dec

2760

12,901,226.74

Jan

1388

7,231,970.83

Feb

1946

13,659,766.81

Mar

2487

13,115,223.73

Total

25,821

140,517,028.77

Table 6: Medical payments per month - 2014/15

The number of service provider claims received increased significantly between 2011 and 2014 with a
slight reduction for the financial year 2015 compared to 2014.

Financial Year

No. of Service Provider
Invoices Received

2011/2012

17453

2012/2013

22291

2013/2014

25913

2014/2015

25232

Table 7: Number of service provider invoices received 2011-2015

Private hospitals, radiology, emergency response service, physiotherapy, neurosurgery, orthopaedics
and medical equipment such as wheelchairs, crutches and walking frames, account for about 67% of
the total annual amounts paid toward medical expenses.
Private hospital expenses account for 50% of the annual accepted amount between 2011 and 2015,
while radiology expenses are the second highest accounting for 5%. Emergency response services
follow closely in third position at an average of 4% of the total annual cost. Physiotherapy appeared in
the top 10 service provider list in the financial year under review.
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Fig 8: Top Claiming Providers 2011 - 2015

Accident and Injury Prevention
The country continues to face enormous challenges in tackling the road safety epidemic. During the
2014/2015 financial year, the MVA Fund together with its partners and stakeholders, put in place various
road safety interventions by way of education and enforcement aimed at holding down the rising trend of
road traffic accidents and its associated fatalities and injuries. During the period, road safety awareness
was enhanced through targeted interventions in a number of regions predisposed to road traffic crashes.
Several road safety initiatives to minimize the impact of road traffic crashes, were particularly intensified.
Key, among other interventions, were the Law Enforcement campaign launched in collaboration with
the National Road Safety Council (NRSC), the Namibian Police (Nampol) and Roads Authority (RA)
targeting the B1 road between Okahandja and Otavi. Along with this initiative aimed to improve driver
behaviour, off-peak average speed determination was also conducted along the same route.
The Truck Road Safety Campaign was also initiated to educate truckers on road safety concerns such
as fatigue, night driving and other related issues while sharing the road with other road users. Core to
the year were the targeted pedestrian and workplace road safety interventions in the following regions:
Erongo, Khomas, Otjozondjupa, Kavango East and Kavango West respectively.
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Along with National Road Safety Council, Roads Authority, City Police, Namibian Police Force and
various stakeholders, the 2014/15 Festive Season Road Safety Campaign was successfully rolled out
with financial support from the private sector totalling N$1,352,932.60. Additionally, the campaign saw
the reduction in fatalities by 16% from 115 deaths recorded during the previous campaign period to 97.

120

115

100
80

89

94

2011/12

2012/13

97

71

60
40
20
0
2010/11

2013/14

2014/15

Fig 9: Fatality trend for festive season campaign periods: 2010 - 2015

Notwithstanding these accomplishments, there is need to continuously curb unacceptable human
behaviour which has culminated into high levels of indiscipline and recklessness on the road. Targeting
driver fatigue, night driving, disregard for traffic rules and regulations manifesting in excessive speeding,
overloading and driving under the influence of alcohol are some of the areas which require intensive
management.
In order to curtail the rising number of road crashes and their resultant injuries and fatalities in Namibia,
the following recommendations were suggested:

•

Transform the festive season period activities into projects that can be undertaken throughout the
year, to create momentum in order to achieve the desired behavioural change.

•

Introduce relevant, evidence-based, educational programmes that are aimed at promoting pedestrian
safety with special focus on Khomas, Kavango and Oshana regions.

•

Further consolidate partnership with emergency service providers to assist with timely pre-hospital
care at strategic locations, in order to reduce the increasing number of fatalities at crash scenes.

•

Specific targeted road safety educational programmes for men and young people are recommended,
with the purpose of enhancing public knowledge on road safety among these affected groups of the
Namibian population.

•

Increase the number and frequencies of law enforcement activations targeting speed, as well as on
the dangers of driving at night and travelling in pick-up vehicles.
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•

More traffic calming measures within the high pedestrian prone regions should be considered.

Another achievement during the year under review is the signing of memorandum of understanding
between the MVA Fund and the National Road Safety Council which paved the way for the two institutions
to formalize the working relationship in order to consolidate the fight against the carnage on our roads.

Public Education
The Fund continuously engages members of the public with the aim to increase the level of knowledge
on the products offered by the Fund. During the year under reporting, the Fund engaged many corporate
entities and schools with an aim to educate people about its benefits. Platforms such as trade and career
fairs, exhibitions, workshops, face-to-face and radio interviews were used to disseminate information to
the public.
In determining the impact of the engagements, surveys were conducted on a quarterly basis to establish
the level of knowledge amongst those that were engaged. The survey outcome stood at 79% in the last
quarter of the year.
In addition, efforts were made during the year under review to popularize the Accident Response Number
- 081 9682 - in aid of reporting crashes.
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Objectives
Support staff satisfaction through employee engagement programmes and leverage constructive
relationship that has been developed with the Union.

People Strategy
The Fund introduced the People Strategy focusing on the right combination and type of personnel and
the level of performance required to achieve the organisational goals. It is a blueprint for engaging
our employees and ensuring they are constantly motivated to perform and achieve high performance
results. Our People Strategy is our institution’s roadmap for attracting, developing, positively engaging
and retaining our most valuable assets – our people.
The strategy sets out specific, actionable steps that are in place, or desired to support employees
becoming the best at what they do. It describes the expectations the Fund has of its employees and
the ways in which its high-performance culture will help employees succeed. When employees perform
at their peak, highest-quality service is delivered as engagement with our customers and stakeholders
is more meaningful. The work environment should encourage high performance and where excellence
becomes a way of life.

Employee Satisfaction
The Fund participated in the Deloitte Best Company to Work For Survey 2014. Participation in the
survey is aimed at understanding issues critical to our employees and also to test the level of our
employee satisfaction.
The satisfaction level stood at 81.6% in the last financial year. The Fund scooped the award for the
Namibian Best Company to Work For, Second Runner-up in the Small-Medium Category. The award
signifies excellent human resources engagement strategy as employed by Board and Management.
There is certainly still room for improvement.

Year

Position

2011

2nd place

2012

1st place

2013

2nd place

2014

2nd place with Seal of Excellence

Table 8: Best Company To Work For Survey results 2011 - 2014
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Staff Complement
The staff complement at the end of the financial year under review was 150 as depicted below, and
includes five employees on a five month contract to relief employees from the Call Centre who are
attending Basic Life Support training.
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Fig 10: Staff complement as at 31 March 2015

Staff Recruitment
For the successful implementation of its Business Strategy, the Fund requires a workforce with the
right skills, passion and attitude. Accordingly, the Fund recruited staff members to fill vacant positions in
line with business demands and the national goal of creating employment. To ensure effective service
delivery to the business, HR recruitment turnaround target is 30 days for internal vacancies and 60 days
for external vacancies.
During the year under review, the Fund attracted and recruited twenty nine (29) employees in different
positions within the turn-around times, as highlighted in the Figure 11 below.
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Key:
Interns
Turnover

10

Permanent Appointments

20

3-6 Months Contract
15

More than 6 Months Contract

3
11

Fig 11: Financial year 2014/15 recruitment and turnover

Nine employees resigned voluntarily from the Fund to pursue a career path elsewhere and one employee
was dismissed after going through the disciplinary process. It is worth mentioning that most employees
who resigned have completed Post-graduate qualifications while at the Fund i.e.: Master Degree in
Development Finance, CIMA and Master Degree in Risk Management.
Twenty students from various academic institutions were attached for internship opportunities to
prepare them for the job market. They were predominantly from the Polytechnic of Namibia, University
of Namibia, International University of Management and the Windhoek Vocational Training Centre.

Affirmative Action Compliance
The Fund submitted its Affirmative Action Report and a Certificate of Compliance was issued by the
Labour Commission.
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Training and Development
In its quest to fulfil its mandate with a skilled workforce, the Fund continues to enhance employee
competence through various training and development interventions, investing in training and
development in critical areas.
To align skills development to the operations of the Fund, PriceWaterhouse Coopers was contracted
to conduct an organisational skills audit. The key objective was to assist the Fund in gaining an
understanding of its available skills base and compare this to the skills required to deliver on its strategy.
This will also inform the appropriate planning of training and development interventions to address the
identified skills gap. Another key objectives of the skills audit is to ensure that our employees have the
necessary skills required to work in our dynamic environment.

Employee Remuneration and Market Relativity
The Fund participated in the PriceWaterhouse Coopers RemChannel Salary Survey to assess its
remuneration competitiveness in relation to the market. The survey results were presented to the Board
and approval gained for the adjustment of salaries for all employees whose salaries were below the
minimum notch of the market. The adjustments were implemented accordingly.

Employee Wellness
To ensure health and safety for staff members, the Fund conducted a voluntary employee testing day
focusing on life style illnesses and over 80% of employees participated in the initiative.

Employee Social Responsibility
The MVA Fund employees celebrated the 2014 World Cup Kick-Off in generous spirit by donating
blankets, clothes and non-perishable items to the Katutura Old Age Home and Orlindi Place of Safety
Orphanage in Katutura. The old age home houses over 20 senior citizens, who received the donation
personally. Further, the Fund employees also spent time interacting with the children of the Orlindi Place
of Safety Orphanage that accommodates over 26 children aged between 3 months to 18 years. In
addition, the elderly citizens and orphans were treated to a warm and nutritious cup of soup and other
items.
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Fraud Management
A resource responsible for fraud management and liaising with relevant authorities to ensure suspected
fraudulent matters are brought to successful conclusion, has been deployed. Figure 12 below,
summarizes the number and status of suspected fraudulent claims under investigation at the Fund.
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Fig 12: Summary of suspected fraudulent claims
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Objectives
The objectives of this key performance area, i.e. effective internal process are:

•
•

Ensure efficiency and effectiveness of internal policies and practice;
Implement more sophisticated customer segmentation and development of services that respond
to customer needs;

•

Establish new capabilities and activities in key areas such as information analytics, project
management and quality management.

Institutional Performance
This performance area has three key indicators:
i.

Achieve an average rating of 70% in respect with all units performance score

ii.

Resolve 95% of audit findings from audit finding tracker;
In order to realize these performance indicators the Fund embarked upon the following activities
to enable it to meet its stakeholder expectations:

a)

The Fund subjects all its six business units to quarterly performance assessments, were all the
aspects of the Fund business is tested. In order for the Fund to satisfy the 70% average rating
it calls on the respective units to score an average rating of 3.5 or more out of 5 given the Funds’
performance rating scale of 1 up to 5. The Fund scored an aggregate of 76% in respect of the
period under review which is a combination of the respective unit’s performance rating over the
four quarters of the financial year under review.

b)

The Fund resolved 63% of its audit findings of the 95% target during the financial year.

The challenges encountered are mainly related to the claims system which was custom made, making
it difficult to close all controls as highlighted by the auditors. As such the Fund has launched phase 2 of
its systems upgrade in view of closing the identified gaps.
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Objectives
Manage financial performance and achieve solvency.

Financial Performance
This key performance area has two key indicators which places a duty on the Fund to:
i.

Achieve operational surplus of N$136 million dollars during this financial year and

ii.

Attain a funding level of 74%

The Fund is in pursuit of accumulated surplus. Currently the Fund has a funding level of 84.2% and the
ideal position is to have a funding level of 100%, which will be an adequate level of net assets versus
the claims and liabilities.
In order to realize these performance indicators, the Fund reached the following achievements:
a)

N$33.1 million interest income versus the planned N$26 million interest income as the target in
respect of the financial year 2014/2015

b)

Expending of 88% of its annual budget, thus saving 12%

c)

The Fund invested N$137 million in respect of the period under review

d)

An operating surplus of N$137 million against a target of N$136 million

e)

Funding level increase to 84.2% against a target of 74%
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Objectives
The objectives of the Corporate Social Investment (CSI) Policy are founded on the national developmental
agenda to ensure meaningful contribution to Vision 2030. The CSI initiative also represents the
institutional triple bottom reporting regarding its involvement in reduction of societal challenges.
Below are the key objectives guiding the CSI initiatives of the Fund.

Education and skills development in line with MVA Fund Business
In supporting the development of skills in Namibia the MVA Fund resolved to develop much needed and
scarce skills in emergency medical care, to improve not only the response time to crashes but improve
access to medical emergency care services in Namibia.
During the year under review, the Fund awarded eleven bursaries toward paramedic studies adding to
the fourteen existing paramedic bursaries awarded the previous financial year. Furthermore, the Fund
has assisted three medical doctors specialising in neurosurgery, urology and orthopaedic surgery, in
South Africa at a total cost of N$220 000.00. Two occupational therapy and one social work bursaries
were also awarded during the year under review.

Institutions representing people with disabilities
In pursuit of inclusivity, the MVA Fund has, since 2008, been supporting Disability Sports Namibia’s
Annual Awards, which recognise persons with disability for their distinct performance in sports. The
Fund has also granted N$15 700.00 to the Oshana Wheelchair Basketball Club to participate in various
basketball tournaments.
The Onyose Trust was supported with physiotherapy equipment to the value of N$40 000.00 to assist
children with disability thereby uplift the standards of care provided to the Onyose community.

Persons with disabilities emanating from motor vehicle crashes
In promoting a healthy and safe human environment the house modification programme for the Fund’s
seriously injured customers took centre stage, during the past financial year. This is an initiative aimed
at supporting life enhancement by improving mobility, safety and comfort for persons using wheelchairs
as a result of injury sustained in a motor vehicle crash. It also relates to the national housing agenda.
Twelve houses were modified and twenty five more will be modified during the next financial year and
beyond with the intention to modify all the houses of seriously injured claimants.
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The Fund also awarded wheelchairs to persons with disability as a result of crashes that occurred under
the previous legislative framework, but were excluded for legitimate reasons as per the 1990 and 2001
MVA Fund Act, to benefit from the scheme. This is an effort to assist with mobility and independence.
The MVA Fund arranges an Annual Wheelchair Fun Ride to the value of N$100 000.00 to promote
inclusivity and socialization for people with disabilities. The seriously injured customers of the Fund
are invited to a central place with their caregivers to participate in the fun-ride, socialize and share
experiences with other seriously injured persons.

Traffic Simulation
A traffic simulation field was constructed at the Noordgrens School in Rundu and the playground was
renovated. The construction of the simulation field will help with pedestrian road safety education as
Rundu is one of the towns that is hard hit by pedestrian related crashes. Teachers will work with MVA
Fund officials to periodically educate children on how to safely use the road in a practical setting.
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OFFICE AUDITOR-GENERAL’S
OF THE

REPORT ON THE ACCOUNTS OF THE MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

TO THE HONOURABLE SPEAKER OF THE NATIONAL ASSEMBLY

I have the honour to submit herewith my report on the accounts of the Motor Vehicle Accident Fund
for the financial year ended 31 March 2015, in terms of Article 127(2) of the Namibian Constitution.
The report is transmitted to the Honourable Minister of Finance in terms of Section 27(1) of the State
Finance Act, 1991 (Act 31 of 1991) to be laid upon the Table of the National Assembly in terms of section
27(4) of the Act.

WINDHOEK, July 2015

JUNIAS ETUNA KANDJEKE
AUDITOR-GENERAL
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL ON THE ACCOUNTS OF THE
MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
1.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.1

Introduction

This report on the accounts of the Motor Vehicle Accident Fund (the Fund) for the financial year ended
31 March 2015 is presented to the National Assembly in accordance with the terms of Article 127(2) of
the Constitution of the Republic of Namibia and provisions set out in the State Finance Act, 1991 (Act
31 of 1991), as amended. Figures in the report are rounded to the nearest Namibia dollar and deficits
are indicated in (brackets).
The firm BDO Chartered Accountants (Namibia) has been appointed in terms of Section 26(2) of the
State Finance Act, 1991, to audit the annual financial statements of The Motor Vehicle Accident Fund of
Namibia on behalf of the Auditor-General and under his supervision.
I certify that I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Motor Vehicle Accident Fund
for the financial year ended 31 March 2015. These financial statements compromise the following
statements submitted for the year then ended:
Annexure A: Report of the Directors
Annexure B: Statement of financial position
Annexure C: State of comprehensive income
Annexure D: Statement of changes in equity
Annexure E: Statement of cash flows
Annexure F: Notes to the annual financial statements
Annexure G: Detailed statements of comprehensive income
The financial statements accounts were submitted timeously by the Accounting Officer to the AuditorGeneral on the 15 April 2015 in terms of Section 13 of the state Finance Act, 1991.
The financial statements, notes to the financial statements and general information provided by the
Chief Financial Officer are attached as Annexure F.
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2.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Section 12 & 13 of the State Finance Act, Act 31 of 1991 and relevant legislation, and
for such internal control as management determines it necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

3.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

My responsibility is to express an option on these financial statement based on the audit. I conducted
the audit in accordance with international Standards for Supreme Audit Institutions (ISSAIs). These
Standards require that I comply with ethical requirements, plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free material misstatement.

3.1

Powers and duties

Section 25 (1) (c) of the State Finance Act, 1991, provides that the Auditor-General should satisfy himself
that:
(a)

All reasonable precautions have been taken to ensure that all monies due to the State are
collected, and that the laws relating to the collection of such monies have been complied with;

(b)

All reasonable precautions have been taken to safeguard the receipt, custody and issue of and
accounting for, the State’s assets, such as stores, equipment, securities and movable goods;
and

(c)

The expenditure has taken place under proper authority and is supported by adequate vouchers
or other proof.

In addition, Section 26(1) (b) (iv) of the State Finance Act, 1991, empowers the Auditor-General to
investigate and report on the economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of the State’s resources.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control.
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An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for the
audit opinion.

4.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The assistance and cooperation given by the staff of the Fund during the audit is appreciated.

5.

KEY AUDIT FINDINGS

5.1

Going concern

At the statement of financial position date, the Fund’s liabilities exceeded assets by N$106,539,239
(2015) and (N$217,774,468) (2014). Measures introduced during the previous financial year yielded
some satisfactory results. The following initiatives are still in the process of being pursued:
Obtaining approval from the line ministry to implement measures to seek alternative funding sources;
and actively pursuing fuel levy increases in line with the recommendation made by actuaries.

6.

UNQUALIFIED AUDIT OPTION

The financial statements of the Motor Vehicle Accident Fund for the financial year ended 31 March 2015
have been audited in accordance with the provisions of section 25(1)(b) of the State Finance Act, 1991,
read with section 4(4)(a) of the Motor Vehicle Accident Fund Act, 2001 (Act 4 of 2001).
In my opinion, the annual financial statements published, fairly present, in all material respects, the
financial position of The Motor Vehicle Accident Fund of Namibia as at 31 March 2015 and the results
of the operations and cash flow information for the year ended 31 March 2015 in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards and the provisions of Section 25(1) of the State Finance
Act, 1991, and the requirements of the Motor Vehicle Accident Act Number 10 of 2007.

WINDHOEK, July 2015

JUNIAS ETUNA KANDJEKE
AUDITOR-GENERAL
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ANNEXURE A
THE MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND OF NAMIBIA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
DIRECTOR’S REPORT
The director present their annual report, which forms part of the audited financial statements of the Fund
for the year ended 31 March 2015.

1.

Activities of the Fund

Main business and operations
The Fund is statutorily mandated to design, promote and implement crash and injury prevention
measure. It provides assistance and benefits to all people injured and the dependents of those killed
in motor vehicle crashes in accordance with the Motor Vehicle Accident Fund Act No.10 of 2007 and
operates principally in Namibia.
State of affairs and financial results
The state of affairs and full details of financial results are dealt with in the annual financial statements
and can be summarized as follows:
Summary of income statement
2015
N$
Fuel levy income
Income from investments
Sundry income
Claims expenses
Movement in claims provisions and reserves

2014
N$

505,501,642 448,413,340
33,087,154
19,289,597
189,267
43,942
(231,518,731) (195,512,944)
(74,429,000)
(7,826,000)

Analytical review of the Fund’s operations and state of affairs
The new levy of 47, 7 cents was applied for the full 12 months in the current year.
Following the Actuarial Valuation performed at the reporting date, provisions for claims and related
expenditure were charged to income in the year, with the following effect:
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THE MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND OF NAMIBIA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Summary of financial position
Total assets
Total liabilities
Fund deficit
Ratio of total assets to Fund deficit
Ratio of total to Fund deficit %
Fuel sales in litres
Diesel
Petrol

Increase in litres sold

2015
N$

2014
N$

659,499,147
766,038,386
(106,539,239)

507,946,403
725,720,871
(217,774,468)

6.19:1
619%

2.33:1
233%

652,209,363
407,510,714
1 059,720 ,077

602,233,461
387,116,998
989,350,459

70,369,618

50,622,529

Cash and investments
Surplus cash and part investment returns invested at various financial institutions comprise:

Cash and investments
Funds held with assets managers
Fixed term investments
Call account investments
Bank balances
Cash on hand

2.

2015
N$

2014
N$

316,069,945
167,160,582
604,248
3,901,905
32,657
487,769,337

228,984,391
118,399,252
253,144
4,666,449
24,028
352,327,264

Going concern

We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2015 the Fund had accumulated deficits of
N$106,539,239 (2014: N$217,774,468) and the Fund’s total liabilities exceed its assets by
N$106,539,239 (2014: N$217,774,468).
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ANNEXURE A
THE MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND OF NAMIBIA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
DIRECTOR’S REPORT

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to
a going concern, this basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that
the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities contingent obligations and commitments will occur
in the ordinary course of business.
The ability of the Fund to continue as a going concern depend on a number of factors. The most
significant of these is that the directors continue to procure funding for the ongoing operations of the
Fund.
The fact that the total liabilities exceed the assets has not hindered the Fund’s ability to pay its debts as
they become due in the normal course of business.

3.

Events after the reporting period

The directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year.

4.

Directors of the Motor Vehicle Accident Fund

The directors of the Fund during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:
Name							Nationality
Z. Erkana						Namibian
C. Kavendjii						Namibian
The late P. Amunyela					Namibian
A. Kapia						Namibian
P. Nakathingo						Namibian

5.

Executive management of the Fund

Executive management of the Fund at the date of this report are as follows:
Name							Title
R. Martins-Hausiku					
Chief Executive Officer
J. Nyandoro						
Chief Financial Officer
P. Nghifitikeko						
Chief Operations Officer
J. Kurz							Chief Legal Advisor
K. Tjombonde						Chief Corporate Affairs
S. Tjiuoro						Chief Business Strategy
F. Uugwanga						Chief Human Relations
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

6.

Auditor

The Auditor-General will continue in office in accordance with Section 25 (1) of the State Finance Act of
1991 and Section 7(4) of the Motor Vehicle Accident Act Number 10 of 2007.
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ANNEXURE B
MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND OF NAMIBIA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
Statement of Financial Position
Assets
Non-Current Assets
Investment property
Property plant and equipment
Current Assets
Investments
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Notes

2015
N$

2014
N$

3
4

6,123,668
76,341,142
82,464,810

6,123,668
71,441,571
77,565,239

5
6
7

483,230,527
89,265,000
4,538,810
577,034,337
659,499,147

347,383,643
78,053,900
4,943,621
430,381,164
507,946,403

Total Assets
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Accumulated deficit

(106,539,239) (217,774,468)

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Long term liabilities
Retirement benefit obligation
Deferred income
Claims provisions and reserves

8
9
10
11

Current Liabilities
Long term liabilities
Trade and other payables

22,605,397
3,859,000
38,146,006
675,828,000
740,438,403

41,701,992
2,942,000
48,837,299
601,399,000
694,880,291

8
12

148,597
25,451,386
25,599,983
766,038,386
659,499,147

4,137,465
26,703,115
30,840,580
725,720,871
507,946,403

Total Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities
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ANNEXURE C
MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND OF NAMIBIA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Notes

Revenue
Claims paid

2014
N$

13
14

541,091,304 469,848,174
(305,947,731) (213,338,944)

Gross surplus
Other income
Operating expenses

15

235,143,573 256,509,230
210,000
77,258
(123,636,089) (111,274,838)

Surplus before finance costs
Finance costs

16
18

Surplus for the year
Other comprehensive income
Surplus for the year

68

2015
N$
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111,717,484
(482,255)
111,235,229
111,235,229

145,311,650
(2,034,074)
143,277,576
143,277,576

ANNEXURE D
MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND OF NAMIBIA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Statement of Changes in Equity

Accumulated
Deficit
N$

Balance at 01 April 2013

(361,052,044) (361,052,044)

Surplus for the year
Balance at 01 April 2014
Surplus for the year
Balance at 31 March 2015

143,277,576

Total
Equity
N$

143,277,576

(217,774,468) (217,774,468)
111,235,229

111,235,229

(106,539,239) (106,539,239)
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ANNEXURE E
MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND OF NAMIBIA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash Generated from operations
Finance costs
Net cash from operating activities

Notes

2015
N$

2014
N$

20

174,279,842
(482,255)
173,797,587

166,806,465
(2,034,074)
164,772,391

Cash flows investing activities
Purchase of property plant equipment
Sale of property plant and equipment
Movement in investments

4
4

Net cash from investing activities

(15,480,051) (11,768,413)
210,000
135,500
(135,846,884) (181,541,165)
(151,116,935) (193,174,078)

Cash flow from financing activities
Movement in long term liabilities
Movements in finance lease obligations
Net cash from financing activities
Total cash movement for the year
Cash at the beginning of the year
Total cash at the end of the year
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7

(23,085,463)
(23,085,463)

(3,954,375)
(819,739)
(4,774,114)

(404,811)
4,943,621
4,538,810

(33,175,801)
38,119,422
4,943,621

ANNEXURE F
MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND OF NAMIBIA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.

Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and The Motor Vehicle Accident Fund Act Number 10 of 2007. The annual financial
statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and incorporate the principal accounting
policies set out below. They are presented in Namibia Dollars.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.1

Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the annual financial statements management is required to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of
available information and the application of judgement is inherent in the information of estimates. Actual
results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be material to the annual financial
statements. Significant judgments include:
Trade receivables Held to maturity investments and loans and receivables
The Fund assesses its trade receivables held to maturity investments and loans and receivables for
impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether an impairment loss should be
recorded in profit or loss the Fund makes judgments as to whether there is observable data indicating a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.
The impairment for the trade receivables held to maturity investments and loans and receivables is
calculated on a portfolio basis based on historical loss ratios adjusted for national and industry-specific
economic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date that correlate with defaults on
the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to loan balances in the portfolio and scaled to the
estimated loss emergence period.
Impairment testing
The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based
on the higher of the value-in-use calculations and fair values less costs to sell.
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These calculations require the use of estimate and assumptions. It is reasonably possible that the
assumption may change which may then impact our estimations and may then require a material
adjustment to the carrying value of tangible assets.
The Fund reviews and test the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances
suggest that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for
which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there
are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future cash
flows for each group of assets. Expected future cash flows used to determine the value in use of tangible
assets are inherently uncertain and could materially change over time.
Provisions
Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available.
Outstanding claims provision
The estimation of the ultimate liability arising from claims incurred but not settled at the reporting date
is the Fund’s most critical accounting estimate. There are several sources of uncertainty that needed to
be considered in the estimation of the liability the Fund will ultimately pay for such claims. The provision
for outstanding claims is actuarially determined on annual basis. The measurement of the obligations
in respect of this liability requires actuarial estimates and valuations. An actuary is engaged to perform
these calculations. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions are included in Note 11 –
Provisions.
Post-retirement benefit
The Fund provides a defined benefit plan to its employees. The measurement of the obligations and or
assets in respect of this liability requires actuarial estimates and valuations. An actuary is engaged to
perform these calculations. Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based on current market
conditions. Additional information is disclosed in Note 9 – Retirement benefit obligation.
Allowance for doubtful debts
On receivables an impairment loss is recognised in surplus or deficit when there is objective evidence
that is impaired. The impairment is measured as the difference between the receivable carrying amount
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and present value of estimated future cash flow discounted at the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition.

1.2

Investment property

Investment property is recognised as an asset when and only when it is probable that the future economic
benefits that are associated with the investment property will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the
investment property can be measured reliably.
Investment property is initially recognised at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial
measurement.
Fair value
Subsequent to initial measurement investment property is measured at fair value. A gain or loss arising
from a change in fair value is included in net profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

1.3

Property plant and equipment

The cost of an item of property plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
•

it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Fund; and

•

the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property plant and equipment and
costs incurred subsequently to add to replace part of or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised
in the carrying amount of an item of property plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised.
Property plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives
to their estimated residual value.
Property plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses.
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The useful lives of items of property plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:
Item						Average useful life
Buildings 					50 years
Motor Vehicles 					2-4 years
Office equipment and furniture			

7-10 years

IT Equipment					

3 years

The residual value useful life and depreciation method of each assets are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period. If the expectations differ from previous estimates the change is accounted for as a
change in accounting estimate.
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying
amount of another asset.
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property plant and equipment is included in
profit or loss when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of
property plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds if any
and the carrying amount of the item.

1.4

Financial instruments

Classification
The Fund classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories:
•

held-to-maturity investment

•

loans and receivables

•

financial liabilities measured at fair value

•

financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained/incurred and
takes place at initial recognition. Classification is re-assessed on an annual basis except for derivatives
and financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss which shall not be classified out of
the fair value through profit or loss category.
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Initial recognition and measurement
Financial instruments are recognised initially when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.
The Fund classifies financial instruments or their component parts on initial recognition as a financial
asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement.
Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value except for equity investments for which a fair
value is not determinable which are measured at cost and are classified as available-for-sale financial
assets.
For financial instruments which are not at fair value through profit or loss transaction costs are included
in the initial measurement of the instrument.
Transaction costs on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or
loss.
Subsequent measurement
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair value being included in profit or loss for the period.
Net gains or losses on the financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss includes dividends
and interest.
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss as part of other income when the Fund’s right to receive
payment is established.
Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method
less accumulated impairment losses.
Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest
method less accumulated impairment losses.
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Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Fair value determination
The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset
is not active (and for unlisted securities) the Fund establishes fair value by using valuation techniques.
These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models making maximum use
of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity specific inputs.
Impairments of financial assets
At each reporting date the Fund assesses all financial assets other than those at fair value through
profit or loss to determine whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets has been impaired.
For amounts due to the Fund significant financial difficulties of the debtor probability that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy and default of payments are all considered indicators of impairment. Impairment
losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the financial asset’s recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised subject to the restriction
that the carrying amount of the financial asset at the date that the impairment is reversed shall not
exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss except for equity investments classified
as available-for-sale.
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Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
of financial reorganization and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are
considered indicators that the trade receivables is impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of
loss is recognised in profit or loss within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectable
it is written off against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against operating expenses in profit or loss.
Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.
Trade and other payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. These are initially and subsequently recorded at fair value.
Held to Maturity
These financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus direct transaction costs.
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At subsequent reporting dates these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any impairment loss recognised to reflect irrecoverable amounts. An impairment loss is
recognized in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired and is measured
as the difference between the investment’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. Impairment losses
are reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in the investment’s recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised subject to the restriction
that the carrying amount of investments at the date the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
Financial assets that the Fund has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity are classified as
held to maturity.

1.5

Tax

The Fund is exempt from taxation in terms of the provision of Section 6 of the Motor Vehicle and
Accident Fund Act Number 10 of 2007.

1.6

Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership.
Finance leases-lessee
Finance leases are recognized as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts
equal to the fair value of the leased property or if lower the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance
lease obligation.
The discount rate used in calculating the present value of minimum lease payments is the interest rate
implicit in the lease.
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The lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding
liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant
periodic rate on the remaining balance of the liability.
Operating leases-lessor
Operating lease income is recognised as an income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease
income.
Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in profit or loss.
Operating leases-lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
The difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are
recognised as an operating lease asset. This liability is not discounted.

1.7

Impairment of assets

The Fund assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists the Fund estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment the Fund also:
•

tests intangible assets with an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not yet available for use
for impairment annually by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount.
This impairment test is performed during the annual period and at the same time every period.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired the recoverable amount is estimated for the
individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to
sell and its value in use.
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If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.
An impairment loss of assess carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
An impairment loss is recognised for cash-generating units if the recoverable amount of the unit is less
than the carrying amount of the units. The impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of the assets of the unit.
•

Pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss
recognized in prior periods may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists the
recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated.
The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

1.8

Provision and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
•

the Fund has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

•

It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation; and

•

a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the
obligation.
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Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by
another party the reimbursement shall be recognized when and only when it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be treated
as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the
provision.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits.
If an entity has a contract that is onerous the present obligation under the contract shall be recognised
and measured as a provision.
A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity:
•

has detailed formal plan for the restructuring identifying at least:
-

the business or part of a business concerned;

-

the principal locations affected;

-

the location function and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for
terminating their services;

•

-

the expenditures that will be undertaken; and

-

when the plan will be implemented; and

has raised valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to
implement that plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised.

1.9

Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered
such as paid vacation leave and sick leave bonuses and non-monetary benefits such as medical care)
are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.
The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render
services that increase their entitlement or in the case of non-accumulating absences when the absence
occurs.
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The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payment is recognised as an expense when there is a
legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.
Defined benefit plans
For defined benefits plans the cost of providing the benefits is determined using the projected unit credit
method.
Actuarial valuations are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries separately for each
plan.
Consideration is given to any event that could impact the funds up to the end of the reporting period
where the interim valuation is performed at an earlier date.
Past service costs are recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested and are
otherwise amortised on a straight line basis over the average period until the amended benefit become
vested.
To the extent that at the beginning of the financial year any cumulative unrecognised actuarial gain or
loss exceeds 10% of the greater of the present value of the projected benefit obligation and the fair value
of the plan assets (the corridor) that the portion is recognised in profit or loss over the expected average
remaining service lives of participating employees. Actuarial gains or losses within the corridor are not
recognised.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the year in which they arise in other comprehensive income
Gains or losses on the curtailment of a defined benefit plan is recognised when the Fund is demonstrably
committed to curtailment or settlement.
When it is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or all of the expenditure required to
settle a defined benefit obligation the right to reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. The
asset is measured at fair value. In all other respects the asset is treated in the same way as plan assets.
In profit or loss the expense relating to a defined benefit plan is presented as the net of the amount
recognised for a reimbursement.
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The amount recognised in the statement of financial position represents the present value of the defined
benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised past service
costs and reduction by the fair value of plan assets.
Any asset is limited to unrecognised actuarial losses and past service costs plus the present value of
available refunds and reduction in future contributions to the plan.

1.10

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that:
•

the Fund will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and

•

the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the related
costs that they are intended to compensate.
A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or deficits already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future related costs is
recognised as income of the period in which it becomes receivable.
Government grants related to assets including non-monetary grants at fair value are presented in the
statement of financial position by setting up the grant as deferred income or by deducting the grant in
arriving at the carrying amount of the asset.
Grants related to income are presented as a credit in the profit or loss (separately).
Repayment of a grant related to income is applied first against any un-amortized deferred credit set up
in respect of the grant. To the extent that the repayment exceeds any such deferred credit or where no
deferred credit exists the repayment is recognised immediately as an expense.
Repayment of a grant related to an asset is recorded by increasing the carrying amount of the asset or
reducing the deferred income balance by the amount repayable. The cumulative additional depreciation
that would have been recognised to date as an expense in the absence of the grant is recognised
immediately as an expense.
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1.11

Revenue

Fund levies
The main income received by the Fund is a levy that is based on fuel sales known as the Motor Vehicle
Accident Fund Levy. The Motor Vehicle Accident Fund Levy is a charge levied on fuel throughout the
country and the quantum of the Fund Levy per litre is determined by the Ministry of Mines and Energy.
The Fund recognizes revenue from the fuel levies when the amount of revenue can be easily measured
and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Fund.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Investment income
Investment income comprises interest income on funds invested. Interest income for financial assets
not classified as at fair value through statement of comprehensive income is recognised on a timeproportion basis using the effective interest rate method.
Rental income
The Fund receives income from rent on properties leased out to third parties. Rental income is measured
at fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

1.12

Claims paid

An insurance contract is defined as a contract under which the insurer accepts significant insurance risk
from another party the policyholder by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain
future event insured event adversely affects the policyholder. The Fund does not have any insurance
contracts but it accepts insurance risk as it is mandated by legislation to compensate victims of road
accidents for injuries suffered as a result of motor vehicle accidents.
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The Fund covers the following claims:
1. Medical expenses
2. Funeral grants
3. Loss of income
4. Loss of support
5. Injury grant
Claims incurred
Claims incurred comprise claims related expenses incurred during the year and changes in the provisions
for outstanding claims, including related external expenses together with any other adjustments to
claims from previous years.
Outstanding claims provision
Provision is made at year end for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not yet settled at the reporting
date. Claims outstanding are determined as accurately as possible on the basis of a number of factors,
including previous experience in claims patterns, claim settlement patterns and trends in claim frequency.
Further, the outstanding claims provision is calculated taking the following elements into account:

•

estimates of additional claims payments that may be required on claims that have already been
reported to the Fund and are still open;

•

estimates of additional claims payments that may be required on claims that have already been
reported to the Fund and are closed, but could be reopened in the future; and

•

estimates of external claim-handling expenses such as legal and medical experts, assessors and
other experts excluding the Fund overhead administrative costs.

The estimates of the outstanding claims provision were produced on a going-concern basis, and the
outstanding claims estimate is reflected in the financial statements at a discounted value, based on
expected monetary values at the expected time of the payment of those claims. Reserves for the
internal or indirect claim-handling expenses are specifically excluded from the estimates, for example
administrative costs.
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Contingent liability for claims IBNR
The cost of claims incurred but not yet reported (commonly referred to as IBNR) to the Fund will be
disclosed as a contingent liability, as the obligating event, in terms of lodging and ascertaining the merit
of the claim, has not yet happened.

1.13

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributed to the acquisition construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset until such time as the asset is ready for its intended
use. The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined as follows:
•

actual borrowing costs on funds specifically borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset less any temporary investment of those borrowings;

•

weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the entity on funds generally borrowed
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. The borrowing costs capitalised do not exceed
the total borrowing costs incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when:
•

expenditures for the asset have occurred;

•

borrowing costs have been incurred; and

•

activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.

Capitalisation is suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted.
Capitalisation ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are complete.
All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

1.14

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions
A foreign currency transaction is recorded on initial recognition in Namibian Dollars by applying to
the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign
currency at the date of the transaction.
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At the end of the reporting period:

•
•

foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate;
non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 		
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and

•

non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using 		
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items
at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in
previous annual financial statements are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised to other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or
loss any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Cash flows arising from transactions in a foreign currency are recorded in Namibian Dollars by applying
to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the Namibian Dollar and the foreign currency
at the date of the cash flow.

1.15

Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in
the current year.

1.16

Related parties

The Fund operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by
the Namibian Government. These entities are considered related parties.
Management comprises those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities
of the Fund; as well as those charged with governance of the Fund in accordance with legislation in
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instances where they are required to perform such functions.
Close members of the family or a person are considered to be those family members who may be
expected to influence or be influenced by management in their dealings with the Fund.
Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s length and not in the ordinary course of business are
disclosed.

2.

New Standards and Interpretations

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
Standard replaces the consolidation sections of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
and SIC 12 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities. The standard sets out a new definition of control
which exists only when an entity is exposed to or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through power over the investee.
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2013.
IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements
Consequential amendment as a result of IFRS 10. The amended Standard now only deals with separate
financial statements.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2013.
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
The standard replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC 13 Jointly Controlled Entities - Non
Monetary Contributions by Venturers. The standard defines a Joint arrangement as existing only when
decisions about relevant activities requires the unanimous consent of the parties sharing joint control in
terms of a contractual arrangement. The standard identifies two types of joint arrangements as:

•
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obligations for the liabilities of the joint arrangements. In such cases the joint operators recognise
their share of the assets and liabilities and profits and losses of the joint arrangements in their
financial statements.

•

joint ventures which exists when the entities sharing joint control only have rights to the net assets
of the joint arrangements. Joint venturers account for their interest in joint ventures using the equity
method of accounting.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2013.
IFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities
The standard sets out disclosure requirements for investments in Subsidiaries, associates, joint
ventures and unconsolidated structured entities. The disclosures are aimed to provide information about
the significance and exposure to risks of such interests. The most significant impact is the disclosure
requirement for unconsolidated structured entities or off balance sheet vehicles.
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2013.
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
New standard setting out guidance on the measurement and disclosure of items measured at fair value
or required to be disclosed at fair value in terms of other IFRS’s.
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2013.
IAS 19 Employee Benefits Revised

•

require recognition of changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) including immediate
recognition of defined benefit cost, disaggregation of defined benefit cost into components
recognition of re-measurements in other comprehensive income plan amendments, curtailments
and settlements;

•
•

introduce enhanced disclosures about defined benefit plans;
modify accounting for termination benefit including distinguishing benefits provided in exchange
for service and benefits provided in exchange for the termination of employment and affect the
recognition and measurement of termination benefits;

•

clarification of miscellaneous issues including the classification of employee benefits, current
estimates of mortality rates, tax and administration costs and risk-sharing and conditional indexation
features.
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The effective date of the amendments is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2013.
IAS 28 Investments in Associate and Joint Ventures
The standard supersedes IAS 28 Investment in Associates and prescribes the accounting for investments
in associates and sets out the requirements for the application of the equity method when accounting for
investments in associates and joint ventures.
The standard defines significant influence and provides guidance on how the equity method of accounting
is to be applied (including exemptions from applying the equity method in some cases). It also prescribes
how investments in associates and joint ventures should be tested for impairment.
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2013.
Amendments to IFRS 1 First time adoption on government grants
Amends IFRS 1 First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards to address how
a first time adopter would account for a government loan with a below market rate of interest when
transitioning to IFRSs.
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2013.
Amendments to IFRS 10,11 and 12 on transition guidance
Amends IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in other entities
and IFRS 11 Joint arrangements.
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2013.
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
A finalized version has been issued which replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
measurement.
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2018.

90

MVA Fund Annual Report 2015

ANNEXURE F
MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND OF NAMIBIA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3.

Investment property

2015

Investment property

2014

Cost Accumulated Carrying
Cost Accumulated Carrying
depreciation
depreciation
value
value
6,123,668
- 6,123,668 6,123,668
- 6,123,668

Reconciliation of investment property – 2015

Investment property

Opening Balance

Total

6,123,668

6,123,668

Opening Balance

Total

6,123,668

6,123,668

Reconciliation of investment property – 2014

Investment property

Details of property
ERF 6436 measuring 960 square meters situated in the Municipality of Windhoek
- Purchase price: 11 May 2011

4,000,000

4,000,000

ERF 6441 measuring 1,340 square meters situated in the Municipality of Windhoek
- Purchase price: 23 September 2008
- Additions since purchase or evaluation

1,500,000
623,668
2,123,668

1,500,000
623,668
2,123,668

MVA Fund Annual Report 2015

91

ANNEXURE F
MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND OF NAMIBIA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4.

Property, plant and equipment

2014

2015

Land and buildings
Motor vehicles
Office equipment and furniture
IT equipment
Total

Cost / Accumulated
Carrying
Cost / Accumulated
Carrying
valuation depreciation
value
valuation depreciation
value
(5,105,057) 55,188,091
(6,421,390) 64,905,982 60,293,148
71,327,372
(5,106,519) 5,361,057
(6,491,786) 5,798,409 10,467,576
12,290,195
(7,934,260) 3,921,989
(8,826,899) 3,658,973 11,856,249
12,485,872
28,688,275 (26,710,497) 1,977,778 27,777,469 ( 20,807,035) 6,970,434
124,791,714 (48,450,572) 76,341,142 110,394,442 (38,952,871) 71,441,571

Reconciliation of property plant and equipment-2015

Land and buildings
Motor vehicles
Office equipment and furniture
IT equipment

Opening
balance
55,188,091
5,361,057
3,921,989
6,970,434
71,441,571

Additions Depreciation
11,034,224
2,904,586
630,435
910,806
15,480,051

(1,316,333)
(2,467,234)
(893,451)
(5,903,462)
(10,580,480)

Closing
Balance
64,905,982
5,798,409
3,658,973
1,977,778
76,341,142

Reconciliation of property plant and equipment-2014

Land and buildings
Motor vehicles
Office equipment and furniture
IT equipment
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Opening
Balance
50,087,250
4,351,647
4,492,190
11,606,297
70,537,384

Additions Depreciation
6,355,251
2,821,420
314,766
2,276,976
11,768,413

(1,254,410)
(1,812,010)
(884,967)
(6,912,839)
(10,864,226)

Closing
Balance
55,188,091
5,361,057
3,921,989
6,970,434
71,441,571
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Details of properties
ERF 6325 measuring 4,084 square meters situated in the
Municipality of Ongwediva
- Purchase price: 16 November 2007

2015
N$

2014
N$

142,818

142,818

2,882,487
29,395,924
32,278,411

2,882,487
29,395,924
32,278,411

1,000,0000
1,349,963
2,349,963

1,000,000
41,750
1,041,750

125,220
998,942
1,124,162

125,220
134,282
259,502

400,000
1,859,493
2,259,493

400,000
1,280,186
1,680,186

98,321
27,979,764
28,078,085

98,321
19,788,365
19,886,686

ERF 8596 measuring 6,747 square meters Situated in the
Municipality of Windhoek
- Purchase price: 30 November 2010
- Additions since purchase or valuation

ERF 1771 (portion of 1760) measuring 1,193 square meters
Situated in the Municipality of
Otjiwarongo
Purchase price: 05 February 2013
Additions since purchase or valuation

ERF 2542 measuring 2,887 square meters situated in the
Municipality of Rundu
Purchase price: 1 December 2005
Additions since purchase or valuation

ERF 1370 (Portion of ERF 1368) measuring 1,514 square
meters Situated in the Municipality of Keetmanshoop
Purchase price: 1 December 2005
Additions since purchase or valuation

ERF 6326 measuring 2,975 square meters situated in the
Municipality of Ongwediva
Purchase price: 16 November 2007
Additions since purchase or valuation
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ERF 879 measuring 1,250 square meters situated in the
Municipality of Walvis Bay
Purchase price: 16 March 2012
Additions since purchase or valuation

5.

Investments

At fair value through profit or loss
Funds held with assets managers

2015
N$

2014
N$

4,200,000
894,440
5,094,440
71,327,372

4,200,000
803,795
5,003,795
60,293,148

316,069,945

228,984,391

167,160,582

118,399,252

483,230,527

347,383,643

316,069,945
167,160,582
483,230,527

228,984,391
118,399,252
347,383,643

Funds held with professional managers are fair valued by professional
managers at year end
Held to maturity
Fixed term investments
Fixed term deposits are held with financial institutions
Total other financial assets
Current assets
At fair value through profit or loss
Held to maturity
Fair value information
Funds held with professional managers are fairly valued by asset
managers as at year end
The fair value of financial assets was determined as follows:
- The fair value of listed or quoted investments are based on quoted
market price.
- The fair value are determined annually at statement of financial
position date.
Fair value hierarchy of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Level 1 represents those assets which are measured using unadjusted
quoted prices for identical assets.
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6.

Trade and other receivables

Fuel levies receivables
Deposits
Value Added Tax
Staff loans
Customer control account

2015
N$

2014
N$

84,250,657
45,668
133,138
4,835,537
89,265,000

75,365,592
30,668
123,758
(2,815)
2,536,697
78,053,900

89,265,000
81,848,973

78,053,900
78,053,900

32,657
3,901,905
604,248
4,538,810

24,028
4,666,449
253,144
4,943,621

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired
Trade and other receivables which are less than 3 months past due
are not considered to be impaired. At 31 March 2015 N$89,265,000
(2014: N$78,053,900) were past due but not impaired.
The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:
Less than 1 year past due
2 - 3 years past due

7.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash on hand
Bank balances
Short term deposits

8.

Long term liabilities

Held at amortized cost
First National Bank
On 24 February 2009 a building loan of N$21 million was extended
by First National Bank which financed the construction of MVA
Fund Service Centre in Windhoek. The loan is for a period of 10
years and is payable on a monthly basis starting 31 March 2009.
The interest rate on this loan is prime rate less 2%. At 31 March
2015 the bond had been fully repaid.

-

12,474,094
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First National Bank

2015
N$

On 24 February 2009 a building loan of N$ 7 million was extended
by First National Bank which financed the construction of MVA
Fund Service Centre in Ongwediva. The loan is for a period of 10
years and is payable on a monthly basis starting 31 March 2009.
The interest rate on this loan is prime less 2%. At 31 March 2015
the bond had been fully paid.

-

The Fund requested a further fuel levy advance from Ministry of
Mines and Energy to cover operational expenditure and future
Fund obligations.

22,605,397

2014
N$

4,158,029

23,062,701

The loan is interest-free and payable as follows:
- repayable at N$ 200,000 per month - interest free
Bank Windhoek
The Fund requested a loan from Bank Windhoek for the purchase
of Erf 6436 in Windhoek. The loan is repayable in 120 equal
instalments and bears interest at prime lending rates. At 31 March
2015 the bond had been fully repaid.

-

3,205,042

-

2,939,591

Bank Windhoek
On 16 March 2012 a loan to purchase Erf 879 Walvis Bay was
acquired from Bank Windhoek. The loan is for a period of 120
months at an annual interest rate prime plus 0.5%. At 31 March
2015 the bond had been fully repaid.
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22,753,994

45,839,457

Non-Current liabilities
At amortised cost

22,605,397

41,701,992

Current liabilities
At amortised cost

148,597
22,753,994

4,137,465
45,839,457
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9.

Retirement benefit obligation

Defined benefit plan

2015
N$

2014
N$

(2,942,000)
(917,000)
(3,859,000)

(2,560,000)
(382,000)
(2,942,000)

The defined benefit plan consists of the Severance pay benefit
which is governed by section 35 (1) of the Namibian Labour Act
of 2007 which came into effect 01 November 2008. In terms of the
Act the Severance benefits are payable to an employee for one (1)
week’s wages for each completed year of service if the employee is
dismissed; dies while employed; or resigns or retire on reaching the
age of 65 years.
The retirement benefit obligation has been determined through
Actuarial valuation.
Carrying value
Present value of the defined benefit obligation wholly unfunded
Net actuarial gains or losses not recognised
Movements for the year
Opening Balance
Net expense recognised in profit or loss
Net expense recognized in profit or loss
Current service cost
Interest cost
Amortization

(2,942,000)
(917,000)
(3,859,000)

(2,188,000)
(754,000)
(2,942,000)

(466,000)
(317,000)
(134,000)
(917,000)

(437,000)
(267,000)
(50,000)
(754,000)

146
50,619,000
37
6
8.70%
6.40%
7.40%

137
43,760,000
37
6
9.30%
6.80%
7.80%

Key assumptions used
Assumptions used on last valuation on 01 April 2015.
Number of employees
Total annual salaries
Average service (in Years)
Salary weighted average age (in years)
Discount rates used
Inflation rate
Expected increase in salaries
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The liability has been calculated using the projected Unit Credit
Method which accrues uniformly whilst the member is in service.
The normal retirement age for all employees is 60 years.

10.

2015
N$

2014
N$

38,146,006
38,146,006

48,837,299
48,837,299

Opening
Balance

Increase in
claims provisions
and reserves

Total

601,399,000

74,429,000

675,828,000

Opening
Balance

Increase in
claims provisions
and reserves

Total

583,573,000

17,826,000

601,399,000

Deferred income

Deferred income realized as a result of an interest free loan granted
by the Government of the Republic of Namibia to the Fund. Interest
free loans are recognized as a form of Government assistance and
are recognized as the difference between the initial carrying amount
of the loan and the actual proceeds received from the Government.
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

11.

Claims provisions and reserves

Reconciliation of claims provision and reserves – 2015

Provisions

Reconciliation of claims provisions and reserves – 2014

Provisions
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Provisions include:
Provisions for outstanding claims including Notified Outstanding Claims Reserve (NOCR)
and Claims Incurred But Not Reported Reserve (IBNR)
Fair value determination of the unreported incurrent claims
Claims incurred but not reported – Funeral and injury grants
Claims incurred but not reported – Loss of Income and Loss of Support
Claims incurred but not reported – Medical Undertakings
Claims Undertakings – Loss of Income
Claims Undertakings – Loss of Support
Claims Undertakings – Medical Undertakings
Belgian doctors’ claims
Claims in Litigation
Claims handling expenses
Contingency reserves

46,565,000
38,579,000
25,377,000
70,267,000
268,000,000
60,491,000
85,836,000
17,881,000
30,650,000
32,182,000
675,828,000

36,700,000
29,886,000
22,673,000
65,903,000
231,372,000
56,496,000
83,615,000
18,842,000
27,274,000
28,638,000
601,399,000
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Claims incurred but not reported – Funeral and Injury Grant
Development patterns as summarised in the actuarial valuation. The report derived from the monthly
claims run-off was used to evaluate claims incurred but not yet reported.
The projected claim numbers were multiplied by the average claim amounts of N$7,000.00 and
N$14,089.00 (N$7,000.00 and N$11,922.00 in 2014) for Funeral and Injury Grants respectively to get
incurred but not reported liability.
Claims incurred but not reported – Loss of Income, Loss of Support and Medical Undertakings
For undertakings we also used development patterns derived from the claims data provided. The
development factors where used to project claims undertaking amounts in respect of accidents prior to
31 March 2015 but yet to be reported in subsequent years. The projections were based on total claims
undertakings recorded to date.
Loss of income – excluding the Belgian doctors’ claims
The present value of all projected future payments for the remaining term until age 60 or earlier expected
death is calculated. Allowance is made for inflation at 5% per annum.
Where no full details of remaining term was provided initial undertaking amount was rolled up with
interest of 7.5 % to the end of the 2015 financial year. The annual payments made to date were also
rolled up with interest of 7.5 % per annum. The value of the outstanding claims was set as the difference
between the rolled up undertaking amount and the sum of the payments allowing for interest. The
difference was subject to a minimum of zero.
Loss of Support claims
The present value of all projected future payments for the remaining term until age 60 or earlier expected
death is calculated. Allowance is made for inflation 5% per annum.
Where no full details of remaining term were provided initial undertaking amount was rolled up with
interest of 7.5 % to the end of the 2015 financial year. The annual payments made to date were also
rolled up with interest of 7.5 % per annum. The value of the outstanding claims was set as the difference
between the rolled up undertaking amount and the sum of the payments allowing for interest. The
difference was subject to a minimum of zero.
Medical undertakings
The actuaries set the liability equal to 100% of the sum of the outstanding balances (subject to a minimum
of zero) irrespective of the year the undertaking was made. They however reviewed all the historical
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dormant undertakings together with the management of the Fund and in cases where there is no further
future payments expected the records have been expunged from the system and no liability held.
Since the bulk of medical expenses are expected to be incurred in the short term we have not applied
any discount factor to the outstanding balances.
Belgian Doctors
The schedule of all future remaining payments was set out in court papers drafted in November and
December 2009. The actuaries have set the liability as the preset value of these future payments with
allowance for mortality interest and expected future N$/Euro exchange rate movement.
Two cases have been fully settled by the Fund as at 31 March 2015. Calculations were only made in
respect of Ms. Carol Clara Cornelis’ claim, which is the only outstanding claim.
Claims in Litigation
Management provided a separate schedule with case estimates of claims in litigation at year end. The
total of these amounted to N$17.8 million and this amount has been set aside as the liability.
Claims handling expenses
The actuaries have allowed for claim handling expenses at 5% of outstanding liabilities including IBNR.
Contingency reserves
The contingency reserve is set as 5% of the liability for the IBNR and Claims undertakings.
The key financial and demographic assumptions used are:
- Average historic rate 8% (2014: 8%)
- Valuation discount rate 7.5% (2014: 7.5%)
- Annual future inflation 5% (2014: 5%)
- Expected future exchange rate (Euro vs N$) N$13.11 (2014: N$12.77)
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2015
N$

2014
N$

3,552,649
5,274,831
2,168,218
13,853,724
601,964
25,451,386

6,802,993
5,166,607
2,060,227
12,159,705
513,583
26,703,115

505,501,642
336,238
1,977,003
33,087,154
189,267
541,091,304

448,413,340
15,000
2,086,295
19,289,597
43,942
469,848,174

231,518,731
74,429,000
305,947,731

195,512,944
17,826,000
213,338,944

210,000
210,000

135,500
3,626
(61,868)
77,258

1,189,946

1,047,730

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment

210,000

135,500

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Employee costs

10,580,480
82,814,580

10,864,226
71,636,183

12.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables
Other payables
Accrued leave pay
Accrued bonus
Other accrued expenses

13.

Revenue

Fuel levy income
Xupifa Eemwenyo revenue
Rental Income
Investment Income
Miscellaneous other revenue

14.

Claims

Claims paid
Movement in actuarial liability

15.

Other income

Profit and loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Discount received
Unrealised profit and loss on equity

16.

Surplus before finance costs

Surplus before finance costs for the year is stated after accounting
for the following:
Operating lease charges
Premises
• Contractual amounts
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17.

Employee costs

Indirect employee costs
Employee costs
Leave pay provision charge
Employee wellness
Staff development and training
Post-employment benefits - Pension - Defined benefit plan
Total employee costs
Indirect employee costs

18.

74,905,714
460,851
2,762,009
3,769,006
917,000
82,814,580

65,348,616
265,828
1,835,557
3,432,182
754,000
71,636,183

82,814,580

71,636,183

482,255

2,034,074

1,195,390

434,425

111,235,229

143,277,576

10,580,480

10,864,226

(210,000)
482,255
917,000
74,429,000

(135,500)
2,034,074
754,000
17,826,000

(11,211,100)
(1,251,729)
(10,691,293)
174,279,842

(13,271,216)
6,968,345
(1,511,040)
166,806,465

Auditor’s remuneration

Fees (external and internal audit fees)

20.

2014
N$

Finance costs

Banking Institutions

19.

74,905,714
2015
460,851
N$

Cash generated from operations

Surplus for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Finance costs
Movements in retirement benefit liabilities
Movements in provisions
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables
Deferred income
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21.

Related parties

The Fund is created by statute with the Minister of Works and Transport being the Executive Authority
representing the Government of Namibia. The related parties of the Fund mainly consist of departments,
state owned enterprises, other public entities in Government, key management personnel of the Fund,
the directors, its Executive Authority and their close family members.

22.

Directors’ fees

Non-executive
2015

Directors’ fees

2014

Directors’ fees

23.

Directors’ fees
N$

Total
N$

1,245,864

1,245,864

Directors’ fees
N$

Total
N$

1,245,864

1,245,864

Taxation

The Motor Vehicle Accident Fund is exempt from taxation in terms of the section 6 of the Motor Vehicle
Accident Fund Act No10 of 2007.

24.

Risk management

Financial risk management
The Fund is exposed to a range of financial risks through its financial assets and financial liabilities. The
most important components of this financial risks are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (which
comprises of interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risks). The risk that the Fund primarily
faces due to the nature of its assets and liabilities are liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk and
insurance risk.
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The Fund’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Fund’s financial performance. The Fund uses
derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.
Risk management is carried out by central treasury department under policies approved by the board.
Fund treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Fund’s
operating units. The board provides written principles for overall risk management as well as written
policies covering specific areas such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of
derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments and investment of excess
liquidity
Liquidity Risk
The Fund has exposure to liquidity risk which is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting
its obligations associated with financial liabilities.
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests within the Board of Directors which has built
an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Fund’s short medium
and long term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Fund manages liquidity risk by preparing cash flow projections on a monthly basis to ensure
adequate funding is available to meet its obligations. Furthermore the Fund invests surplus funds on
appropriate instruments.
Cash flow forecast are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing facilities are monitored.
The table below analyses the Fund’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months
equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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At 31 March 2015

Investments
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Long term liabilities		
Provisions
Retirement benefit obligation

At 31 March 2014

Investments
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Term liabilities
Provisions
Retirement benefit obligation

Trade and
Other
Receivables
N$

44

N$

Financial
liabilities at
amortized cost
N$

316,069,945 167,160,582
(675,828,000)
-

(25,451,386)
(22,753,994)
-

-

-

-

(3,859,000)

Trade and
Other
Receivables
N$

Held at fair
value through
profits or loss
N$

Held to
maturity

89,265,000
4,538,810
-

78,053,900
4,943,621
-

Held at fair
value through
profits or loss
N$

Held to
maturity

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
N$
N$

228,984,391 118,399,252
(601,399,000)
-

(26,703,115)
(45,839,457)
-

-

(2,942,000)

-

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices will affect the Fund’s income or value of its holdings in financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters while optimising return on risk.
The Fund’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risk of changes in interest rates and foreign
exchange rates.

106

MVA Fund Annual Report 2015

ANNEXURE F
MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND OF NAMIBIA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Interest rate risk
Interest risk is the risk that the fair value is future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due
to changes in the market interest rate. The Fund has interest-bearing assets at market interest rates.
The Fund’s interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowing issued at variable rates
expose the Fund to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowing issued at fixed rates expose the Fund to fair
value interest rate risk. During 2015 and 2014 the Fund’s borrowings at variable rate were denominated
in the Namibian Dollar.
Cash Flow Interest Rate Risk
Financial instrument

Current
Interest rate

Due in less
than a year
N$

Due in one
to five years
N$

-%
-%
-%
-%
-%
-%
-%

89,265,000
4,538,810
148,597
25,451,386

483,230,527
22,605,397
3,859,000
- 675,828,000
-

Investments
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Long term liabilities
Retirement benefit obligation
Provisions
Trade and other payables

Due after
five years
N$

Credit Risk
The Fund has exposure to credit risk which is the risk that the counterparty will be unable to pay
amounts in full when due. Key areas where the Fund is exposed to credit risk are:
-

Amounts due within respect of motor finance scheme loans
Amounts due from fuel levy debtor (income receivable)

Management manages the credit risk as follows:
The debtors of the Fund’s motor vehicle scheme are at executive and management levels. The Fund
is the registered title holder to all the vehicles involved and the vehicle are comprehensively insured.
Monthly instalments are deducted directly from payroll.
The provision of the Petroleum Act does not allow the Fund to collect fuel levies directly from different
fuel companies but instead from the Ministry of Mines and Energy. The Fund is constantly communicating
with the Ministry through the office of the Minister and the Permanent Secretary to find ways to reduce
the period of payment.
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Foreign exchange risk
Foreign currency risk is defined as the risk that the fair value future cash flows or a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in the market prices. The Fund is exposed to foreign currency risk
arising from the Belgium doctors claims which are denominated in Euro currency. The responsibility for
the foreign exchange risk management rests within the board of directors which has built an appropriate
risk management framework.
The Fund reviews its foreign currency exposure including commitments on an ongoing basis.
Insurance risk
The Fund accepts significant insurance risk from another party i.e. the claimant by agreeing to
compensate the claimant if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the
claimant. These are classified as insurance contracts.
The Fund accepts insurance risk as it is mandated by legislature to compensate victims of road accidents
for injuries suffered as a result of motor vehicle accidents.
Insurance risk is significant if and only if an insured event could cause the Fund to pay significant
additional benefits once a contract is classified as an insurance contract until all rights and obligations
are extinguished or expire.
Claims incurred
Claims incurred comprise related expenses incurred during the year and changes in the provisions
for outstanding claims including provisions for claims incurred but not reported and related external
expenses together with any other adjustments to claims from previous year.

25.

Going concern

We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March the Fund had accumulated deficits of N$(106,539,239.00)
and that the Fund’s total liabilities exceed its assets by N$(106,539,239.00).
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to
a going concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that
the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities contingent obligations and commitments will occur
in the ordinary course of business.
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Detailed Statement of Comprehensive Income
Revenue
Fuel levy revenue
Government grant - released
Xupifa Eemwenyo revenue
Rental Income
Miscellaneous other revenue
Income from investments

Notes

13

Cost of sales
Claims paid
Gross Surplus
Other Income
Discount received
Unrealised profit and loss on equity
Gains on disposal of assets

Expenses (Refer to page 110)
Operating surplus
Finance costs
Surplus for the year

18

2015
N$

2014
N$

505,501,642
336,238
1,977,003
189,267
33,087,154
541,091,304

448,413,340
15,000
2,086,295
43,942
19,289,597
469,848,174

(305,947,731)

(213,338,944)

235,143,573

256,509,230

210,000
210,000

3,626
(61,868)
135,500
77,258

(123,636,089)

(111,274,838)

111,717,484
(482,255)
111,235,229

145,311,650
(2,034,074)
143,277,576
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Operating expenses

Accounting fees
Auditor remuneration 					
Bad debts
Bank charges
Cleaning
Computer expenses
Consulting and professional fees
Corporation communication
Corporation social investment
Depreciation amortisation and impairments
Employee and directors costs
Entertainment
Fines and penalties
General expenses
Gifts
Incentives
Insurance
Lease rentals on operating lease
Leasing charges
Legal expenses
Licence fees
Magazines, books and periodicals
Motor vehicle expenses
Organisational development
Postage
Printing and stationery
Property management expenses
Relocation of offices
Repairs and maintenance
Security
Subscriptions
Telephone and fax
Travelling expenses
Utilities
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Notes

19

2015
N$

2014
N$

390,350
1,195,390
1,430,546
246,318
695,964
619,166
5,697,327
246,315
4,736,891
10,580,480
82,814,580
188,367
(2,559,470)
60,950
150,508
1,006,165
1,189,946
163,763
730,964
854,710
73,506
1,748,078
686,365
289,650
354,069
1,925,170
83,998
178,519
861,604
219,924
2,171,119
2,643,138
1,961,719
123,636,089

304,141
434,425
253,195
688,927
2,444,189
4,443,445
8,870
2,900,396
10,864,226
71,636,183
181,882
2,559,470
56,357
709,251
644,606
1,047,730
135,058
646,233
8,510
47,420
1,568,769
1,097,187
173,685
223,876
970,425
37,628
405,435
1,344,575
450,566
1,835,790
1,647,558
1,504,830
111,274,838
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